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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

25 Hall Street

Concord, NH 03301
TEL. (603) 271-3495
FAX (603) 271-1953

January 10, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

/3^ ^

Christine M. Brennan

Deputy Commissioner

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education to enter into a sole source grant agreement
with Granite Edvance Corporation (formerly the NHHEAF Network) Concord, NH (Vendor Code #381808)
in the amount of $50,000 to provide scholarships to public high schools to increase the number of first
generation low income students to pursue a college degree, effective upon Governor and Council

approval through June 30, 2025. 100% Other Funds.,

Funds are available in the following account in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between fiscal years through the
Budget Office if needed and justified.

06-56-56-566510-67770000 HIGHER ED/TRANSCRIPT Admin Fees

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Total Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $25,000
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $25,000

Total $50,000

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Granite Edvance Corporation is the exclusive provider of the
ApplyNH campaign. New Hampshire's "ApplyNH" (formerly I Am College Bound/1 Applied) campaign is
designed to help high school seniors navigate the college admissions process and ensure that each
student pursues a postsecondary education by inviting them to submit at least one college admission
application during a particular school day with the support of their school and local higher education
professionals. High Schools voluntarily participate in this program, and it is open to all public high
schools, public academies, and public charter high schools.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu

and the Honorable Council
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The $25,000 each year will be used to support the ApplyNH effort by providing 50 scholarships to public
high schools with a $500 scholarship to be awarded to a student who participates In their school's
program. This scholarship provides an incentive to participate.

This campaign is part of the American College Application Campaign, a national effort to increase the
number of first-generation and low-income students pursuing a college degree or other higher
education credential. 2023 will mark the tenth year New Hampshire has participated in this national
initiative and based on the growth of this program, this is now a month-long initiative. .

Respectfully submitted by,

oj 'UA"
Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education
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FORM NUMBER C-1 (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT,

Tlic State of New Hampshire and the Giantee hereby
Mulually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

. Identillcatidn and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name
Department 0 f Education

1.2. State Agency Address
25 Hall Street. Concord. NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

Granite EdvancerCorpbratipn F/K/A Tlie
NHHEAF Network

1.4. Grantee Address 1
3 Bai rell Coiul. .Concord, NM 03301

1 1.5:Grantee Phone#
603.227.5459

1.6. Account Number

See Exhibit C

1.7. Completion Date
.lune 30, 2025

1.8. Grant Limitation:
$ 50:,000.00

1.9: Grant Officer for State Agency
Fmnk Edeiblul

I.IO. State Agency Telephone Number
603:271.3144

If Grantee is a municipality or village disii'ict; "By signing this.form we certify that we h.ivc complied with any public
mcetins requirement fornccentance of this gmnt, Includinc if aDDlicablc RSA 3l:95-b."

1.^ GranteeSjghdtUi;

(1 jj\N\ a a
1.12. Name & ,Title of Grantee Signer 1
Chrisiiaiia Thornton, President &, CEO

GrSntec Signatu re 2 Name & Title oTGrantce Signer 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee SignorS

1.13 State Agency/

oJ
^re(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Evccutidn) (if G & C approval required)

By: /?-i— ^Assistant Attorney General, On: 1/1/7/2D24
1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (ifapplicable)

By: On: / t

through the Agency Identified in block l.l (hereinafter referred to as ''the State"), the Graniee-
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafterreferred to <15 "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more parcic.ulariy disscribed in the scdpe of work, attached Itercto as EXHIB.n' B (the scope Of work
being hereinafter rcfeired to as he Project").
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4.

4,1.

•4,2.

5.2,

5-3.

5.4.

>,3-

7.'

l.l.

7.3,

8.

8.1.

82,

8:3.

9,1.

AUKA ( OvnRt'.l^: Hxtcpt as-olhcmlw sjwcitlcidly providftJ foi herein. ,lhe
•Gmniec shall pcrfonii" ihc Projccl in.,und wih rMpccI to. ihe Sluic,6rNcvv
Hampshire,- -7 2
KV>>:c: nVF. DATn:-COMPljl-rK)NO|- PROJrCT
Tliis Agrceiiiciil. ot^ ull obligaiioiiii of the parties. hctvimJer, Shall. hcctin.ie
cITcciiyc on'ihe date oil the Jaie oropprovtil orUiis Agrccincni by iiic bovcrnor
apcl Coiincil ot' lbc'-.State of New- Hiimpshiru if required (.block I.IO). p.r upon 9 X.
signatuic by i1k,.SioIc Agency as shrnvTj.in block i.I4 ('•llu* EiTcctivc. Dale"),
Ll\ccplasothcrvv;i$c a'pectfically provided herein, the Project, including alt icporis^ 9,4'.
roqilirwl.by lhis Aijrtcmcni. shdil bc complCtcd in H S entirety prior lb liic diilc in-
block 1,7 (hcreinaficr rcfcrrciJ to-us "the Completion naie")
GRA?4T amount- I.IMITA TION ON AMt RJNT: VOUCMF.RS: OAYMIINT
'Die Cram Anioimt fs,identified and more, panieularly dcscrilved-in nXHlUl T C,
attached hereto. 9,.S.
'Ilic innmiiirol", and-scii^iilc orpaymcni.shdll bc,a5-5d forth-in riXl.lilJrr-.D, •
It! accbrdaivcc with the prbvutioii's .set forth in liXHliJlT C. and in considenitkm 10.
of the saiLsfaiilory pcrlqrmancc lifthc Projccl, os detcnnined by.tJic .Stale, and its
lunitcd h)' Kobpari^rapb 5.5-.or.thcsc gcni-rat provisioii-s;- thy. Stale shiili pay titc
Cinintccihe Grant Amount. lltc.Stiitc shall .vv'itlihbid from-lltc anktunl othertyisv
payable to the Grantee urider this subparagrj;^t S.J ihwc stints required, or
penniitetl. to he tviihfteld pursiumt lo. N.f I, RSA S();7 ihrpu^ 7^'-
'niepitymeht by .ilw,State oflite Grant itmotmi shall .be the oiily, and the complete-
payment 10 iIk .Gftmlcc- Ibi: till expenses, of whatever italure. ineiirrcd by lltc
Grantee -in the perforinanee Itcrwaf. and shall ,be' the .only, and,the cnraplc'le.
compensation to the Grantee for tlte Projixl/ 'IliuSiritesliail-hnvciuiliubiltiiesto II.
IhcGrDittre'oilicrth'Qnihe Grntit A.hioiha-. 11.1.
NolwiiKstanding, anything in Ibis Agiwmcnt to the contrary, and notwilHstandihij
unexpected"ciivtJmslafieci in no event sltall iHe iotal ot-all payments autlioriA.-d, 11.t.i-
01 actually ina(h:, her\:iiiidei'exceed 11k- Gnml limitation set forth in blitck 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general provisioits 11.13
GGMPLIAI^ri! IW- GRAXTIIF- Wmi I.AWS AND lll-GLH.ATiON.^ In Ihh4
eohhcctiori vviiJi the perfonhariccoTiiic Prpjcet„thc Grantee .vhull comply vvhhuli ) 1,2-.

'.sialuiesi iavv» rcgiilrtiions, and orders of icderal, sjaie. cminiy. or'niunicipal
oulhnn'ties whiciishall iinjwscany obltpiionsordulv tjp{<i'viltc G'raiilec, includine 11.2.1
the acquisition of any tindalf neccssorv pcrmivs aixIRSA 3 l-95-b.
!ifce()Rr)S'ahdACTGUN-|-S.
lielwecn the lilTeelive Guic'and llic date seven (7) years after ilie Completion
[)jte,.unieiS'pthenvt.'5e rcqidr'cd by the grant.lcrjits di 'tlte Agency, the Grantee
siinll keep dctnikd oeebunts of:all expenses incurred in cooneciibn with life )'l.2.'2
Projccl, iiidudins. btil not limited to, costs of adniinislratioiu .irjtvspqitation,
ih5uraticc..lek'|>liohc calls, .ami'cilcritial 'maicriab'and services, -Suely accounts
.shall be supported Ivy rcccjpls, invoices, bills and oilici- similar documents-,
Hcivwcn tlw nUeetivc Gate aiKiMhc date seven, (7) years, allcr thc'Compjciipn
IXiic. unless-otheriyise, required by the- grant tcriiis or the Agency pursuuivt to 11,2.3
subparttgraph'7.1, at any iinie durihg.ihc Cianice 's normal business Imrs. and as
ollcp as the State shall demnnd. the Grunicc shall nuike.uvnilabic to lite .Siaie-all 1 1.2.4
recwds pcnuining iq'-muticrs covered by this Agraetaenl. Tlic Grantee, .sltall
permit the State-to audit, examine. at>d rc|)r.i.>duce..'Hi.cii records, and to make audiLs 13!
of.ul! eoniracis. Invoices, ihalcriuls, payrolls; records of personnel, dam <u.s i}i.ai 121.
term Lshercirutllerdenned), and nIhOr mforinaiion-iclatirig to Oil matler.s vovetvd,
by ihis AgrecntCiit. As.used. in this p,;ifagrii|)h.'"Grantee" includes all peisoits.
iiatur.sl or fictional, 'iifliiuitcd-with,- comroJled.by, or iinclcr coinnmn o.wnciship
vviili; tlw onltiy idemified u.s ihc^Gramce in block 1.3 of those provisions
i'f-:R.S0NNr:i..

Tjvc Grantce'shalj.al its rrvvn'cxpciyc. provide oil pcrstiiine! neccssoiy io perform 12.2-
thc Project. Tilt .Grantee warrants tlitil all pcrsoniKl cngagcd iii the Project .shall
be qualified to pcribrm such Project, anil-shall be pro|X'f!y liCenscd.and auihoriijed
to perform such' Projcclunder all appjicnbtc. laws,
The GrAn.tcc sltall not hire, and it shdil ivjl pcnitil any-subcontraetor, sobgmnioc; 12.3.
or (ilhcr person..film or corporaiimi with w-ltom it i.t engaged in-ncpmbincd effort
to perform, the Project, to hire any; jvcrson' wlKi lias, a coriiractuttl rciatitmship wiih
the Slaic„qr vvfxi is a §iaic officer or eihploycctdecled or appointed.
The Grant GlTicei shall bcilic reprc$cnt.iti"vbo'f the .State hetcunder. In ihc'cvcm
of uny- dispute Itereimdci, tlte ii)(crpa*iq(iqn -oT Ihis Agreement by ilic Grant l2-,4,
' Gificcf. lind hts/licr decisioiv mi.uny disptnc. shtill be final,
DATA^ RimiN nONOF DAtAi- ACCI^^
A.S u.icd in this Agreement, the word "data" shall incan'all tnfitmiaii.on and things 13.
developed-or obtuiued durirtg the pCribmioiKC of, br 'acqiiired or-dcvCioped by
,rc'a.tn«i,of,,this Agrycinent. ipeluding, biit mil limited to. all studies, rcporl.s. files,
.rbmniiitc, Mi'rvey.t, maps, charts, wund recordings, video recordings; pioorial
rcpfOduciion5,-dravMjig.s, analyses, graphic tcptescmBlions,

comiHiicr programs,- cotTipuicr printouls,.notes. Iclicrs. memoranda, pbpcr. -und
dtciiments.'all whetlicr finished.orurfinisl.iod.
IJelwveit lltc f/flci'livc Date and the. C.umplcliOit Date,lltc Grnitlcc.shall gram to
the Slam! or-prty-person dCsignuled'.hy it, iinrc.siricied ncccas-'to all data for
examinaiiori,"duplication, puhlieaticvt. irrinslafion, salc. dispdsnt, or Ibr oiiy olhcr
purpo« wholsocvcr.
Np datii.sltull bc subjccl to copyright in the United .RiiUcs or, any other couttuy by
unyoncbiher llidii the Slitie.
On and ufier lite fiffeclive I>tJte nil data, and bity property which has bcen received
from tlte Slate or purchased'vviih fundit provided for lltai purpose under this
Agrccnttni,' sltall-bd ihi: property of the State, niid sltall be returned to the'State'
upon demtind or upon lern).ipslion>oriltis .Agrecmcni 'ror any reason, v^ichcver-
shall first itceur,
The Smie. and anyone it shall de.sigitaie. shall have unrestricted outhorily to
publisit, disclose, distribmc.and.olherwnsc use. inwholcor ilt part,.alt dnla.
CONDITIQNAl. NATURE OR AGRI-fiMENT. Mottvilhittanding onyth'iiig iit
this Agrccrnent lo:tKe cotiiritiy, all obligaiibn's orihc-gmte hereunder, including,
witltout limiiaiiitn; Ute conimirancc of paymenu hcreimdcr,,ore-ebnlingeni u|K)n
the usrailability or eoniiuued'apiiropritilion of I'uikIs. and in "no cvem.sltoll thc5laic
be llihlc fPr any paymcrits Itereiinder iii cxeess-ol'stieli avniiable or uppropriaic'd
tunds. In the event of'a reduction or lennimitiofl of ilxtscTiimis. iIk- State .shiill
have ilK-righi loAviihhold payment unlil such funds beibmc-aVoilable,,if evcr.iln(j
shall havc llw right to,,tCrininate,thi3 Agreement imnicd'iulely iqton giving the
Crnnlee notice, of Such icriniiuiion.
r-:vi-NtoH ni-:i-Ai.'r.f- RFMnnii-.*;
Any one-or inofc ofihc folipvying-acfs oromiss(pn.softhe Grantee slinlfcnnsiiltitv

• on .event Pfdcraiill hcrcurkier (licrcinalicr rci'cnej In as -'Tlvcnts-orDefaull"):
f-ailure to perform.the i'lujcct sotislueiorily or.on .-tchedtiie; or
railqrc lo'suhinli ain-' report required hereunder^-dr
l-aliure to riuuhlatn, of permit iKces.s to, (he records required liereunder; or
FoiliireiP perform any of the other eoveiutnts and conditions ofilii-S Agrocment.
Upun ilic oceurreflce ofuny Hycht ofnefault..tlie State may.litkic'itny one.or more;
orail, of tiic fulIqwingaciinns.'-
Give itic Oiiintce a wriiicn notice specifying the fivcm ol'f)cfault.and.rcqiitring it
to be remedied .within, in the ah.seotc.of a greater or lesser specilicali'oii of time,
lliiny (jt)) day-s from ilVe date of llit ntxlec; (iiid if ihic" Rvent of fXiiauIt is not
timely icm'cdied. icrfii'inute-thts Agreement, encelivc two (2) ihiysnflcr giving clw
-.Gruna'c notice of tcrtninaliun:. uikI
Give tlieiGriioiec a wriiiCn notice "specitying (hc-Kvcniof Default and suspending
.al t paymems to be made unckr llii* Agrccmcnl tind ordering ihni tlw portion of lltc
Grant .Amount vvhich would otherwise aecnic to-thc Granicc..dun'ng the period
from the dale' of such notice until sucii tiinc uS live State dctcrmmes thai the
Oniritcc luis.curcd the Kvem.bffTcfault shall ik-vct be paid lO.ihe Grantee, nnd
.Set oil'against any otltcr obligation tlie Sunc may-owe to the Gninlcc any.damages'
the Sjaie .•vuffers hy reason oranv.liveni of t)claiiii: biid
Crcni the agrccmeiil as bfcael'icd and pursue-any of it.s remedies at law or in equity,
or both,

TTRMINATIGN

Iri liic event of aiiy carly-icmiinatibn of dils Agreciiiiriit for any reasem other ihiin,
Ihc'-epmplcllon ofthc f'ioject. ihe-Gramec .dtoll deliverlo the Cram Olfiecr, rwl
later than tlfiecn (15) dayi alter ihV date of tcmiinaiion.' n repoK (hercinnilcr
referred to as the "Tcrtninaiion Reptin") describing iri'delail all I'rojcct Work
pe'rfbrn»c'd,.!md die Cirarit Amduni earned, iu and ittel tiding iho date oftermination,
in llK-evcrii of Tcrminniion under paragraphs lO or' 124 Of these gciKTal
prov-istons. Ihc approval of such a Tcriiiimuion Rep«>n by the- Siiile slioji-entitle
il« Granlcc'lo receive ihai'pbiiion of the Grant amotint caritCd lo-ond I'ncluding
thc'daicoflcfniiriution. •
in- the event of Termination under paragraphs Ip or 12.4 of iticsc general
pmvisfoiis, .die a|>proval .pi" siich a T^nninuiion Re|>Oi:( hy- llic State shall iirno
cvifm relieve -the Grame'c from oiiy.'nnd mil irahiniy. for damages .sustttincd or
incurred .by the State as a result -of "the Grantee's breach of -its ,i>blientton.s-
hcrettndcr,

Notuhhsiandirvg anythii^ fii this Agreement'to thO--ebiHiTiry.,Citlwr the State nr.
cxcepi ivhcri; notice dcfauli has Iwn given to the Grantee hercunder. the Granlce.
may Icmnoritc (his Agreement vvithour c.'utsc,upon thiny.(30) days'wTilten notice.
CON'lT.ICTi OF INTHRHS T. No officer. meml)l*r Of employee -of the Grvniec,
and np-tcpiwcntaiive.'-onicer.or'eiriployec oi'ihe .State of New. I lampslilreor of
liw governing lw>dy of ilio lucaiiiy or'localiiic.s in which the i'rojcet.is (u be
-•pcrJ'ofmed. who cxcreiscs'any I'uneiions.or respimsibiliiics iri.the review or
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14.

15-

U>,

17.

17.1

IT 1,1.

17.1.2

.a}>proviJ of (he uiKlcrtaking or cjirrj'iiig ou> of^juch I'rojecl, sixiil! ixuitci^to 'in 17.2,
aoy dLS:isioii iclutiiii'((i .thi».Agrccibcni which affxls hiiorlierpcrsoiui' intcicst
Of iJic intcrcM'Ofany corporauon. pttnnersfiip.'or.nMocialion in whicit he lir shc
is difc-'ctly w inilirccily intcrciSied, tier .shall.iw-p'" s'«." Imyc any pcr:iohai nr
pccunbry inlcrcsU direct pr indirect; in this Agreement dr llle proeetds thereof.
CiRAhlTr.r-"S .RHIT^'nON to niK STA'I'K. in liK iwfroriiwnce of this
Agrcciiicot the Graniee.-tts employee*, aiiy siilrcnmiac^r or suljgranlec bi" Jii.
the (irontcc u.rc in itll rcspccis independent eohl/actors, uiid ore neittx-r agents,
nor.employees of'the .State. Ncillter the Giamee iwtr-any of'ils ollKcrs.
einpJoyeesjagenis, members, .siibconiraciorsorsabgmniec's, .slvtlihave uiAltorily
io bind the Stole nor arc Ihcy cniitlcd-to any of the benefits, workinen's
enmpcnsiilini.or cmolumonLs provided by the Stale to its employees,
ASSIGNMI-NT ANI> StiBCONTRArr.S The; Grantee shell hot a.w.gn. or \<t.
oihersyise tiahsfer any .inlercfit in ihiji Agreement • without Uie prioi WTitlcn'
cpnscni, of j.ilie .State. Noik of the i'rojecl VVork sluill be subcontrjctcd or
subgninlcd, by ilw Grantee other ihuit as-,«.*t fonh m fishibit B wiOiota the prior'
'\mjjen ccmscnl of lilt Sinlc. .20.
IhJDIiMNIi-lCATlQN. 'Htc Grantee shall dcferxJ, uxlcmnify.and Iwld hunnlcss
the State, it.s oflicers and employees, from atid itgaiast any and all Ia.i5e.s suffered
by, tlx: .Siuie, iij olVietrs and employ^, and any; and;all'.claim"s, liabilities itt'
penalties ujwni^ 8gain.M i!k State, its ofTicenr and eriiployocs, .by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on.accotini of, hit-scd on, resulting fmm.aiisiiig'oul of (pr which
may be. claimed, to arise pul'pt) tlic .ilci.s of ornis.sion3 of ilic Grantee pt
siibconinidtot.-or stibgramec or otlict agent oftltc Grantee. Noiwliltsiunding the
Ivregomg, iiniliii'tg herein eoniuinedshiill bo deemed loconstiiute a'w-jiverpflhe-
soveicign immunity.(if the State^whieh immunity is.lKichy rcwr\-c(l to ilw State.
Thiscownimt sbnll sur\'ivc lhc:leniiinntioh of tiiis agreement. 22.
INSGftANCl:.

The Cramec shiill, iii its.own cx|Knsc, (tbiain arid majntam in force, pr slwli- 25.
Tcttiiire .nny $ubcoinracio.r,.siibfiran(ec'pf a,ssignce performing Prbjccl work to
obtiiin and mamlain iii force, both for tire benefii of ihu'Siatc. liie following
ihsunincc:

.Siaiiitoiy workers' eonipwvsatioh'.and'mployecS lihliil.ity insurni.Kd for all .24.
cinplpyccs engaged in the pcrromiahcc bl'Uw i'rojcci, and
.General liiibilrty insurance ogainsi all claims ofbodily injuries, death or property
damage. in;ajniH)jur. opt le-is than $1,000,0110 per oc'citrrcJKC und.'$2,n0().00tl
uggt;cgatc Jbr btxiijy injury'or deaili any one incident; and J.500.00U for property
damage in any oho incidcni; ;ind

ThcpolieiesdcscfiK-d insuliparagraph l7.1;orihiapanigraphstiuli be ilic standard
form employed in the Stale of New I lampsliirc; Issued ijy imdcrwniers ticccplahfc
to the..Slaic, ahduinhPrized'to do businclss in the .Stale of New ITanipshirc. Grantee
simll luiiiisli to the Slaic,.eeriiilcales of insurance fpr all rencwal(s) of iiisiiriincc
rciidrtxl inxlcr this Agreement no laicr iltin "iiin HOjdays prior to ihe'e.\piraii6n
dmp Pfcach iiisuraiKC.poliCy.
WAlVliK Ol'BRKACi i. No failure by the State to eiirorcc any pnw^isions hcfcof
alter any Rvcnt ofOcfauli shall be deemeda waiver.of its rjghlswitli-regard lb
tliul t:\xnl. or tiny ̂ obscptiem Kvcnt. 'No. c.sp,rcss waiver of any livent.of li>cfbult
shall be (Jccmcd a waiver of any provisions Itcreof. No such, failure Qfwjiiver
-slinll be deemed n waiver ofthe right pfihc .State-lo.eriro/tc each' and all of thii
provi.sions hcropf uptm ahy furtlkr or.btlicr rieffttilt-wi tht part, of lite Gninfcc.
NOIICT. Any notice by a party hcicto to ihc otlicr pany shall be deemed to have
Ixen dulydelivcred or given at the lime of inailing by.ccrtificd mail. po.ciuge
prcpasd..iii a United Stmes Po.sl OlTicc addressed JO the parties nt iJic addresses
first ab(ive given.
.AMI:NDMl-NT. This Agfccinott may b.c amended, waived or discltargcd only
by an instrument in writing signed by thc'partics hcreio and.oiijy oller-bpprpvai of"
siich amendment, \\Tiiyer'or disehajgd.by itic Oiwernor'and Coiineil tifthe Stale
of New Hampshire, if rc(|uiredpr by tlx: signing Slate Agency.
CONSTRUCnON OK AGREHMf-NT ANDTI:RM,S. Iliis AgrPemcni slwil be
cbnsirticd in nccofd.'incewith the law of the Stoic of New Hampshire, ami is
•binding upon and inureslo lhchcnefiiofthc pitriicsand their respective successors
and assignees The captions aiid.eonients pK.the"'subjeer' blank ary used only 0.3
a (imlier of.cdnvcriicrtcc. ahd arenoi 'tu he considered u pail bf ihis Agreement Or,
to lie used in delcrmlning lhc intend of the parties hereto.
THlRb I'ARTti-S: The-panics hcreio do nCt intend to benefit any ihjrd panics
and thus Agreement, .shull not bc'eprisinicd to confer anysitch bcpeTn-.
ENTIRB AGR15t:MIINT. lliis Agreement, ivhieh may be exccuteci in a number
of counterparts, each of which shiill be deemed an original, coiistiliiles the phltre
ngrvcnicnt imd understanding iKlvycen .the parties, and supersedes'.till prior
agrccmeiit.t and imderstnitdings rclaiihg herctt). -
KPI-CIAi. PROVlStONS. The nddiiional'or modifying provisions.itcl fiicth in
■l-.vlubii A hcreip are me'ofporaicd.aSjmn orihis agiccn'iem.
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EXHIBITS

Scope of Services

New Hampshire's ApplyNH (formerly 1 Am College Bound/I Applied) campaign is designed to help high school
seniors navigate the college admissions process and ensure that each student pursues a postsecondary
education by inviting them to submit at least one college admission application during a particular school day
with the support of their school and local higher education professionals.

The $25,000 each year provided to Granite Edvance will be used to support the ApplyNH effort by providing
SO scholarships of $500 each to public high schools, to be awarded to students who participate in their
school's program In 2023 and 2024. Granite Edvance will schedule and provide staff to each high school
that participates to run an event at the school where students can fill out their college applications. The .
application fees are waived and Granite Edvance will provide staff to assist students with the applications.
NHED will provide the $25,000 in scholarship money, with each school that participates randomly drawing a
student participant to receive the scholarship. This scholarship provides an incentive to students to submit
at least one college application with the support of their school, and the financial support of Granite
Edvance. In November 2020,1,214 New Hampshire high school seniors at 52 participating high schools
submitted 13,611 college applications. These students saved an estimated $90,000 as all NH colleges and
universities waived application fees during each school's program.

This statewide initiative is led by a Steering Committee with members from the NH Department of Education,
NH College & University Council, University System of New Hampshire, Community College System of New
Hampshire, The NHHEAF Network, Campus Compact of New Hampshire, NH Charitable Foundation, NH
School Counselors Association and NH Association of Student Aid Administrators.

This campaign is part of the American College Application Cahapaign, a national effort to increase the
number of first-generation and low-Income students pursuing a college degree or other higher education
credential.

The NH Department of Education will be listed as a sponsor on all marketing material and a representative
will be invited to attend and present scholarships.

By the Numbers:

Year ''
'  Niirriber of

f'i. ■ '

Participating High '

Schools

Num ber of ;

ParticlpaUng

Students

Number of College
Applications Submitted

Scholarship

Dollars Awarded

2024 (expected) 66 2,600 5,700 $25,000

2023 (expected) 63 2,400 5,400 $25,000

2022 61 2,135 5,191 $25,000 '

2021 57 1,637 3.932 $25,000

2020 52 1,214 2,972 $20,000

2019 SO 2,268 6,106 $20,000

2018 42 1,672 4,442 $21,000

2017 34 1,356 3,365 $17,000

Grantee Initials

Date 1wp
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2016 24 1,054 2,221 Si2,0p0

2015 14 534 998 $7,000

.2014. 6 264 533 S3/bdo

Totals through

2022
12/134 29,760 $150,000

In 2022; these high schools participated:

Alylrne High School

Belmont High School

Berlin High School

Coe-Brcwn Academy

Cblebrook Academy

ConVal Regional High School

Conant High School

Concord HIigh Sdiool

Dover High School

Epping High School

Fall Mountain Regional High School
Farmington High School

Franklin High School

Goffstown High School

Gorham Middle & High School

HInsdale High SchopI

inter-Lakes High School

John Stark Regional High School

Keene High School

Kiannett High.Schpol

Klngswood Regional High School
Laconia High School

Lebanon High School

Lisbon High School
Littleton High School

Londonderry High School

Manchester Central,High School
Manchester Memorial High:School

Manchester School of Technology
Manchester West High School

Mascenic Regional High School

Mascoma Valley Regional High School
Merrlmack High School

Merrimack Valley High School
Milford High School

Moultonborough Academy

Nashua High.School North

Nashua High SchporSouth

Newfound Regional High School

Nevymarket Jr^Sr. High School

Newport High School

Niite High School

Pembroke Academy

Pittsburg High School

PIttsfield High School

Plymouth High School

Portsmouth'.HIgh School

Profile High.School

Raymond High School

Salem High School

Sanborn Regional High School

Somersworth High School

Spaulding High School

Stevens High School

Timberlane Regional High School

White Mountairis Regioriai High.SchopI

WiitonrLyndebprp High School
WInnacunnet High School

Wihnisquam Regional High School
Woodsville High School

0 "7
Grantee Initials ^ '

i/WDate /I



EXHIBIT C

Method of Payment

Program Expenses Amount

Scholarships

-  50 public high, schools at $5(50 per school - Fy24 $25,000
50 public high schools at $500 per school - Fy25 $25,000..

Total: .$50,000

Limitation on Price: In no case shaii the.eontract exceed the. priee.limitatiqn of $50,000

Fundlhe Source; Funds are available. In. the following account in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025, with the
.authority to.adjust budget line Items within the,price limitation and encumbrances.between fiscal
years through the Budget Office If.needed and justified.

Ci6-56»56-S66510-677700Q0 HIGHER ED/tRANSCRlPT Admin Fees
Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Total Arnount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $25,000
2025. 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $25,000

Total $50,000^

Method of Payment: Invoices for scholarships for Fy24 to be submitted to the NH Department of
Education,. Division of Educator Support and Higher Education - Higher. Education Commission on or
before June 30i 2024. Invoices" for scholarships for FV25 to be submitted to the NH Department of
Education, Division of Educator Support and Higher Education - Higher Education Commission on. or
before June.30,2025,

Invoices will.be submitted to:

Stephen Appleby

NH Department of Education

101 Pleasant Street

C6ncbfd,.NH 03301

Grantee Initials

Date
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EXHIBIT P

Contractor Obiigatiohs

Cdnlracts in excess of the-simplified acquisition iKreshoTd (-currently set at .$250,000) must address
administrative, cpntractual,. or legal remedies in instances where (he contractors violate or breach
contract terms/and provide for sucii sanctions arid penalties as appropriate. Reference:
2 C.F.R. i} 206.320 and 2 C.F.R. 200, Appendix ll, required.contract clauses.

The cbntraclor acknowledges thai 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Adniinigtrative Remedies for False Claims and
Statements) applies tp the.contractor's actions pciiaining^io this Contract.

The^.Coniracipr,^ certifies and affirmi) the truthfulness and accuracy of each statejnenl of its certification and
disclosurcj if any. lii addition, the Conlractor underetands and agrees that the provisibtis of 31 U.S;C! §
3801 et seq„ apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Breach

A breach of the cpniracc clauses-above may be grounds for terinination of Ihe contract, and fordebannent
as a contractor aiid subcdnlfaetor as provided in 29 C.F.R., § 5.12.

Fraud and False.Statemchis

The Conlractor understands that, ifthe project'wliich is the subject of this Contract is financed in whole or
iri part, by federal, funds; that if the undersigned, the cohipany that the Contractor represents..Pr any
employee or agent, thereof, knowingly makes any false staiemeni, representation, report or claim as to the
character, .quality, quantity, of cost of iTiaterih! ascd prtp be used, or quantity or quality work performed or
to be. perfprined. pr makes any false statement or representation of a material fact, in any .statement,
-certificate; or report, (he Contractor and any cpinpany that the Contractor represents rriay be subject to
prasecutlon under the provisioii of 18 iJSC .§ 100.1 and §1020.

Environmental Protection

(Thi.s clause is appiicable ifthis CohtVaci exceeds^ 150.0.00. It applies to Federal-aid contracts only.)
The Gqniractbf is required to comply with all applicable, standards. Orders or requirements issiied under
Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. ]857,(K).. Section 508 oflhe Clean Water Act.(33 U^S.C. 1368).
Executive Order .1 1738, and Environmental .Protection Agency (EPA) regulations (40 CFR. Part 15) which
prohibit the use under non-exempt Federal cbhfract.s,, grants or loans of facilities- included on the- EPA List,
of Vipiating Facilities. Violations shall be repbued to the FflWA and tu the .U.S: E.PA Assistant
Administrator for Enforcement.

Procurement of Recovered Materials

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.G.. § 6962), State agencies and
agencies of a political subdivision of a.stale tliat are using apprbpriaied Federal funds for procurement must
procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 that
contain the highest percentage of recbverW materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satlsfactoFy
level of competition, where the purchase'price of the iletn exceeds $10,000 or tlie'value of the quantity
acquired in the pfe'cedlrig fiscal year.exceeded.$ 16,.600: must procure solid waste,, management services in
a manner that-maximizes'energy and rcsoLirce recovery: .and must have established an aftlfmalive
procurement; program tor procurement of recovered maieriais. identified in.the EPA guidelines..

Ri:yis<j(iJa)\e '2022

OT
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Exhibit E

•Federal Dcbarmentand Suspension

a. By signature oii this Contraei, tlie Conlracior ceriifies its conipliancej aiid the compliance of its.
Sub-Coniractors, present:or, future., by stating thai any person associated therewith in ,the capacity
of owner; partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any
position of authority involviiVg federal funds-:

1. is not currently under suspension, .debarmeiil, voluntary Sxclugion, or determination of
ineligibility by ;any Federal.Agency;

2. bbes not have a proposed debarment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debaited, voluntarily excluded or deterniined ineligible by any
Federal Agency, within the past three (3.) years: and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted. oiHiad a civil judgment rendered, against the firm by a court
of coiiipetent jurisdiction in-aiiy ni'alter'involving- fraud or official misconduct wiihiii the pasf
three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Cbniractor is liriable lb. certity to the statement.in Section, a.I.
above^, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared ineligible to enter into Contract or
participate in the project.

c.. Where, the Contractor or Siib-Cbntraclpr is unable to certity to any of the statements as listed in
Sections a.2.. a.3.. or a.4.. above; the Contractor or its Suh-Cbntroclbr shall submit a written
explanation to the NHEp. The ceitifieation or explaniitiori shall be considered in connection w.ith
the NHED's determination whether to enter into Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immediate wrhten notice to the NHED if. at any time,
ihe .Contraelbr or its Sub-Contraclof, learn ihar i.ts Debarment and Su.spensjon cerlinc.alion has
become errbneb.u.s by reason of changed circumsranecs.

Revised. Jhne 2022

Contrahtor Inilia/s (Lq



Exhibit F

Anti-Lobbying

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121.
Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, execute the following Ceriificalion:

The Contractor certifies, by signing and submitting this contract, to the best of his/her knowledge and belief,
that:

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence any ofTlcer or employee of any State or
Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee ofa
member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, thie making of any
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal amendment, or modification of any Federal contract grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal Agency, a Member
of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit the "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" form in accordance with its
instructions

httDs://www.gsa.gov/forms-libran7disclosure-lobbvins-activities

c. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 and U.S. Code. Any person
who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less ihah $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

d. The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract that it shall require that the language of this
certification be included in subcontracts with all Sub-Cpntractor(s) and lower-tier Sub-Contractors
which exceed $100,000 and that all such Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contractors shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The NHED shall keep the firm's certification on file as pan ofits original contract. The Contractor
shall keep individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contractors on file.
Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following completion and acceptance of any given
project.

Revised June 2022

Conu actor Initials



Exhibit G

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract, Copy Rights and CQntldcntiality

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement
Co'dtracls or agreeinciits for the performance ol-experimental, developmenlal, or researcli work shall
provide for the rights of (he Federal Governmenr and the recipient in aiiy resulting invention in accordance
with 37 CFR pail 40i, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms
Under Government GranLs, Contracts arid Cooperative Agreements," and any implemcrnlng regulations
issued by the NHED.

Any discover}' or invention that ai'ises during-the coui-se of the cohiracr shall be reported to the NHED. the
Contractor, is required to disclose inventions promptly (b iheooniracling officer (vvilliin 2 months:),after the
inventor discloses it in writing to contractor per.sonhej respoitslble for patent matters. The awarding agency
shall tietemiine how rights in the inveiiticiVdiscovery shall be.alio.cated cons!.steiu with "Covernriient Patent
Policy" arid Title 37 C.F.R. § 40.1..

Conndcntiaiity
All Writteir and oral information and itiateriais disclosed or provided by the NHED under this agreement
constitutes: Confidential Irifonnalioii, regardles.s of whether such information was provided before or after
the date on. this agreement or how it was p.rovided. ,

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge that by makirig use of, acquiring or adding to
infonnalion about .matters and data related to this agreement, which are confidential fo the NHED and its
pailiiers, must remain the .exclusive property of the NHED.

Coiifidentiai information means all data and infpntiation related to the business rind operation or.lhe NHED,
including but hot limited lb all school and student data contained in NH Tille.XV. Education. Chapters 186-
200:

Conifidcntial iivforniation includes but is not liiriited to. student and school district data, revenue and co.st
Information, the source code for computer software and hardware produc.t.s..owned in part or in whoje by
the. NHHD, nnancial inforitiation. partner intbrmationfincluding the identity oPNHED partners). Contractor
and supplier information, (including the identiiy pf NHED Contractorsgnd suppliers), and any infontiallcn
that ha.s been riVarkcd "confidentiar" or "proprietar)'", or.with the.like des.igilaiioii. During the lernVof this-
contract the Contractor agrees to abide by such rules as may be adopted from lime to time by the NHED to
mainraih lhc security ofall confidential infpnnation.. The Contractor fiirtllcf agrees that it will.always regard
and preserve as confidential informalioh/clata reueivcd during the performance of this contract. The
Contractor will not use, copy,.make notes, or use e.xcerpts of any confidential informatipn,.nof will it give,
disclose, provide access to. Or otherwise" make available any confidential .information-.to any. pei-son not
employed Or contracted by the NHED or subcontracted with the Contractor.

0>yncfship of lntellectual Proper^'
The NHEb shall retain ownership of all source data atid dlhef intellectual property of the NHED.provided
to the Contractor in prdcr to complete the services of this agreement. As Avell the NHED will retain
copyright ownership for any and all matefiais, patents and iriielleciual property produced, including, but
not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols, guidelines, posters, or repoils... The Contractor
shall not repioduCe'any materials for .puipDses other than use for the terms under the contractwithout prior
written approval from the NHED.

Revixad June 2Q22

Conlntclor hiitiais

Dale "ij



Certificate of AuthoriW

I, Scott Roeers. hereby certify that I am a duly appointed representative of

Granite Edvance Corporation. 1 hereby certify that Christiana Thornton. President & CEO, is

authorized to execute contracts on behalf of Granite Edvance Corporation and may bind the

organization thereby.

I hereby certify that said authority has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect

as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirt>'

(30) days. 1 further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate

as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed

individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are

expressly stated herein.

Dated; January 22, 2024 Attest:
Scott Rogers
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Sccrclao'of Slate of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE EDVANCE
CORPORATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on Februar\^ 24,

1983. 1 further cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secrcian.' of State s onice have been received and is in good
standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 69165

Certificate Number: 0006341055

I&.

o

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afllxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 2nd dav of November A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secreiars' of Slate



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/OD/YYYY)

11/29/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcylies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Marsh & McLennan Agency LLC - New England
100 Front St, Ste 800
Worcester MA 01608

contact
NAME:

«''aW,> F«n. 888-850-9400 • /a)c. Noi: 866-795-8016
anfiBFRs- MMA.NewEnqland.CerKamarshmc.com

INSURER(S] AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICd

INSURERA: Chubb National Insurance ComDanv 10052

INSURED NEWHAMPSHIGHER
Granite Edvance Corporation
PO Box 2087
Concord NH 03302

INSURERS:

INSURER C:

INSURER 0 :

INSURER E :

INSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1536462459 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. ■

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY

OTHER:

LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILriY

ANY AUTO

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NONOWNED

AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LLAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

RETENTION S

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY y, ̂
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
0FFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED7
(Mtnditory In NH)
11 yes. describe underII yes.
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

S5BC
UlSQ.

N/A

Su5?7
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

9/30/2023

9/30/2023

POLICY EXP
IMMfPP/YYYYL

9/30/2024

9/30/2024

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

DAmACE to RENTEO
PREMISES (Ee occurrencel

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddenll

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidenl)

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT

$1,000,000

$100,000

$ 15.000

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$500,000

$500,000

$500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORP 101, Additional RemarKs Scheduls, may be attached II more space is required)

L^

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PDLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFDRE

THE EXPIRATIDN DATE THEREDF, NDTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCDRDANCE WITH THE PDLICY PRDVISIDNS.

NH Dept of Education
101 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE ^
Concord NH 03301

1 •

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

<S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



A Granite Edvonce

Introducing Granite Edvance, Formerly the NHHEAF Network

Nonprofit's new name highlights commitment to higher education, career access in the Granite State

A Concord nonprofit with a 60-year history of helping New Hampshire students access higher education is beginning a new chapter with

a new name.

Granite Edvance, formerly known as the New Hampshire Higher Education Assistance Foundation (NHHEAF) Network, will continue

supporting New Hampshire students and their families with free career and higher-education counseling and resources as well as

funding assistance through loans, grants and scholarships.

The name change, effective Nov. 1, 2023. reflects a commitment to connecting with the community and a desire to offer a broader range

of services and products. Already, the organization has begun increasing its impact. This year, it gave a total of $300,000 in scholarships

to 96 New Hampshire college students - its largest award yec in 2024, Granite Edvance plans to award $500,000 in scholarships. Last

year, the organization began offering reduced interest rates to New Hampshire students on their private student loan.

"We've served as a trusted partner for thousands of New Hampshire students and their families as they navigate their education and

career goals," said Granite Edvance President and CEO Christiana Thornton. "As we begin this new era, we're setting ambitious goals for

ourselves. We want to expand our reach, supporting students of all backgrounds and ages, while also addressing the workforce needs

and higher education challenges in our state."

The enhanced focus on serving New Hampshire residents comes at a critical time. By 2025, an estimated 65% of jobs in New Hampshire

will require a postsecondary education. The state is also facing a workforce gap of 197,000 over the next decade. Meanwhile, New

Hampshire's young people are leaving the state to attend college in higher numbers than in any other state. They also shoulder one of

the highest average student debts in the country, currently estimated to be $34,085.

"We know that a college education is one of the most valuable investments a person can make, but we also know how challenging it can

be to fund that education," said Thornton, "We're committed to helping students overcome the financial obstacles that stand in the way

of completing their degree."

Granite Edvance recognizes that there are many different pathways to success. Its outreach team works to help students discover and

achieve their education and career goals - whatever those goals may be. The team assists young people and adults in assessing their

aptitudes and interests, exploring careers, researching job training programs, applying to two-year and four-year college, completing

financial aid applications, and more,

"We know that helping people access higher education and career training will ultimately lead to more vibrant communities, and will

benefit the state as a whole," said Granite Edvance Chief Strategy & Lending Officer John Flanders, "By directly supporting individuals,

families, and educators - and working in partnership with community-based organizations - we will make a difference in New

Hampshire,"

To learn.more about Granite Edvance, visit our new website: Graniteedvance.org. To stay informed about news and events, follow

Granite Edvance on Facebook, Instagram, and Linkedin,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees

New Hampshire Higher Education Loan Corporation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements ofNew Hampshire Higher Education Loan Corporation
and Subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of
September 30. 2022 and 202!, the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively,
the financial statements).

in our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in ail material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in their net assets and their cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities ofManagement for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material niisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available
to be issued.



Board of Trustees

New Hampshire Higher Education Loan Corporation

Auditors' ResponsibUities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forger>', intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify' and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Supplementar)' Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Manchester, New Haihpshire

December 21, 2022



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,396,881 $ 11,437,165
Restricted cash 23,054,690 20,216,247
Interest receivable 23,330,714 25,430,723
Amounts due from U.S. Government - subsidized interest and other 709,545 2,048,381
Investment securities 106,279,217 150,038,247

Private loans, net 590,617,783 484,065,200
Federal Family Education loans, net 184,030,080 232,280,847
Due from Federal Fund - 737,715

Accounts receivable, other 1,297,189 52,954
Property, plant and equipment, net 2,230,108 3,012,554
Assets whose use is limited:

Cash collected on serviced loans 356,300 572,935
Other assets 31,144 92.914

Total assets S 943.333.651 .S 929.985.882

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,512,192 $ 9,327,592
Accrued interest payable 332,146 281,164
Special allowance and fees payable to the U.S. Government - 945,659
Other liabilities 58,189 211,583

Deferred revenue - 655,000
Accrual for estimated loss on serviced loans - 1,000,000
Notes payable, net 653.828,513 610.217,049

Total liabilities 656,731,040 622,638,047

Commitments and contingencies (notes 1, 2, 5 and 10)

Net assets:

Without donor restriction 286.602,61 1 307.347,835

Total liabilities and net assets S 943.333.65

See accompanying notes.



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

Change in net assets without donor restriction:
Revenues and gains:

interest on student loans

Net interest benefits and special
allowance on student loans

Net investment return

Other income

Gain on swap terminations

Tola) revenues and gains without donor restriction

Expenses:
Interest expense

Salaries and fringe benefits
Consolidation loan fees

Bond administration expenses
Borrower rebates

Administrative and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for losses on student loans

Total expenses

(Decrease) increase in net assets before effects of
discontinued operations

Gain from discontinued operations

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restriction

Net assets without donor restriction at beginning of year

Net assets without donor restriction at end of year

2022 2021

40,083,855 $ 38,484,245

(1.540.549) (3,066,239)
(20,490,643) 19,245,158

185,008 148,293

5.055.440 —

23,293,1 1 1 54,81 1,457

.  16,823,546 15,905,505

10,313,679 1 1,497,715

1,614,304 1,916,603

679,524 454,076

1.770,150 1,389,989

7,505,073 5,836,946

965,172 1,043,135

5.935.314 1.762.199

45.606.762 39.806.168

(22,313,651) 15,005,289

1.568.427 7.457.837

(20,745.224) 22,463,126

307.347.835 284.884.709

$ 307.347.835

See accompanying notes.



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

CONSOLi DATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

Cash flows from operating activities;
(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor restriction
Adjustments to reconcile (decrease) increase in net assets

without donor restriction to net cash (used) provided by
operating activities:

Capitalized student loan interest
Amortization of deferred loan origination costs
Amortization of debt issuance costs

Amortization of original issue discount
Provision for losses on student loans

Gain on swap terminations
Net realized and unrealized losses (gains) on investments
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities;

Amounts due from U.S. Government

Interest receivable

Cash collected on serviced loans

Accrued interest payable
Special allowance and due to/from the

U.S. Government

Accounts receivable, other

Other assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other liabilities

Due from/to Federal Fund

Deferred revenue

Accrual for estimated loss on serviced loans

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Student loan disbursements

Student loan principal payments received
Loan origination costs paid for student loans
Purchases of propert>', plant and equipment
Purchases of investments

Sales of investments

2022 ' 2021

(20,745,224) 5;  22,463,126

(12,174,630) (5,512,171)

3,019,623 2,337,650

885,451 1,031,702

732,729 917,518

5,935,314 1,762,199

(5,055,440) -

22,952,485 (17,403,462)

965,172 1,043,135

1,356,908 19,062

2,100,009 (5,813,262)

216,635 439,799

50,982 (49,947)

(963,731) (119,463).

(1,244,235) (50,525)

61,770 23,914

(6,815,400) 6,177,676

(153,394) (276,496)

737,715 (739,067)

(655,000) (58,000)

f 1.000.0001 -

(9,792,261) 6,193,388

(209,736,582) (123,264,795)

159,991,1 11 133,781,732

(5,336,652) (3,210,476)

(182,726) (695,527)

(16,439,434) (100,641,019)

37.245.979 77.696.031

Net cash used by investing activities (34,458,304) (16,334,054)



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on notes payable
Net payments on line of credit
Proceeds from swap terminations
Proceeds from notes payable issuance
Debt issuance costs

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
to the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest

(134,561,141) $ (106,554,714)
(385,722,824)

5,055,440
177,830,075

n ■275.650')

512,582,674
(5.104.657)

47.048.724

2,798,159

31.653.412

15.200.479

5,059,813

26.593.599

X  3I.653.412

1 1,396,881 $ 1 1,437,165
23.054.690 20.216.247

S  34.451.571 S 31.653.412

$  15,154,384 $ 14,006,232

See accompanying notes.



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

1. Organization

New Hampshire Higher Education Loan Corporation (NHHELCO) is a private, non-profit, tax-exempt
corporation founded in 1983 and organized for the charitable and educational purpose of providing
financial assistance primarily to eligible New Hampshire students and to take and caiT>' out alt actions
and functions reasonably necessary for the accomplishment of these purposes. During September 1993,
NHHELCO became an eligible lender under the Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL) Program.
NHHELCO also provides private non-guaranteed student loans which are aimed at borrowers who have
difficulty obtaining financial assistance through Federal loan programs.

New Hampshire Higher Education Assistance Foundation (the Foundation or NHHEAF) is a private, non
profit, tax-exempt corporation founded in 1962 for the purpose of guaranteeing long-term, low interest
rate educational loans made by financial institutions to students attending colleges and technical schools.
On April 1, 2020, the Foundation, which consists of an operating fund and Federal Fund as discussed in
note 2, became a wholly-owned subsidiarj' of NHHELCO. With the passage of the Federal Higher
Education Act of 1965 (the HEA), the Foundation became the administering agency in New Hampshire
for the FFEL Program. Prior to July 1, 2010, the Foundation sponsored guaranteed loan programs in
which both students and parents participated.

Reference to "the Company'' collectively describes NHHELCO and its subsidiaries. The Company is not
an agency, instrumentality, or department of, or otherwise affiliated in any manner with the State of New
Hampshire.

During the Company's fiscal year 2010, the Federal government passed the Student Aid and Fiscal
Responsibility Act (SAFRA) legislation which ended new originations under the FFEL Program effective
July 1, 2010, therefore has reduced NHHELCO's Federal loan portfolio and related revenue overtime.

On Februar)'9, 2021, management of the Foundation notified the United States Department of
Education's (ED) Office of Federal Student Aid (FSA) of its decision to cease functioning as a FFEL
Program guarantee agency. During 2021, the Foundation worked with ED and the successor guarantee
agency as appointed by ED, Texas Guarantee Student Loan Corporation d^/a Trellis Company (Trellis),
to transfer guarantor responsibilities. Under the agreement made on September 1, 2021 between the
Foundation, ED and Trellis, the guarantor functions and responsibilities of the Foundation's FFEL
Program portfolio transferred on October 1, 2021. As defined in the agreement, the Foundation retains
the Guarantee Agency Operating Fund (see note 2) and all amounts as of the transfer date subject to
certain continuing restrictions of their future use. The Foundation is developing plans to use those funds
in furtherance of its mission to support New Hampshire students and families in navigating their education
and career pathways. It was recognized under the agreement that ED had paid default aversion fees to
the Foundation, of which the Foundation had recorded deferred revenue associated with default aversion
fees that could have been required to be refunded to FSA (see note 2). On the transfer date, the Foundation
remitted $2 i 6,000 to Trellis in exchange for Trellis' assumption of future default aversion fees that may
be refunded to FSA. Under the agreement, the Foundation accrued approximately $328,000 in estimated
conversion costs payable to Trellis at September 30. 2021 within accounts payable and accrued expenses
in the accompanying 2021 consolidated statement of financial position. These amounts were paid in
2022. See note 14.



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

1. Organization (Continued)

NHHELCO had a student loan servicing contract with ED to provide servicing for loans owned by ED.
These loans include Federal Direct Loan Program loans originated directly by ED and FFEL Program
loans purchased by ED. NHHELCO earned a monthly fee from ED for each unique borrower who has
loans owned by ED and serviced by NHHELCO.

On July 19, 2021, the Board of Trustees of NHHELCO voted not to renew the student loan ser\'icing
contract with ED expiring on March 31, 2022. During 2022, NHHELCO worked with ED to transfer all
federal direct student loans that were currently being serviced by NHHELCO to EdFinancial Services.
This transfer was completed in March 2022. See note 14.

In accordance with its mission, the Company voluntarily provided approximately $263,000 and SI 75,000
in 2022 and 2021, respectively, to support New Hampshire students and families in navigating their
educational and career pathways. Such amounts are recorded as administrative expenses in the
accompanying 2022 and 2021 consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.

2. Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). The following describes the more significant
accounting policies:

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements contain the accounts of NHHELCO and its subsidiaries, the
Foundation; NHHEAF Network Educational Foundation which was an inactive, not for profit, tax-exempt
entit)' before its ultimate dissolution in 2022; EDvestinU Private Loan Issue No. I, LLC, EDvestinU
Private Loan Issue No. 2, LLC, EDvestinU Private Education Loan Issue No. 3, LLC and EDvestinU
Private Education Loan Issue No. 4, LLC, which are wholly-owned limited liability companies that
originate and purchase private non-guaranteed student loans; and Granite Business Solutions, Inc. (GBS)
which is an inactive for-profit corporation. The Foundation's accounts include an operating fund, which
is consolidated within the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position, activities and
changes in net assets and cash flows, and a Federal Fund, which is further discussed below and in note 13.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The Company is required to report infonnation regarding its financial position and activities according to
two classes of net assets: net assets without donor restriction and net assets with donor restriction. Any
support or contributions received are recorded as without donor restriction or with donor restriction
depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. The Company does not have any net
assets with donor restriction at September 30, 2022 or 2021. The financial statements are prepared on the
accrual method of accounting and accordingly recognize revenues as earned and expenses as incurred.



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Higher Education Amendments of 1998 (the Amendments) were enacted on October 7, 1998, with
an effective date of October I, 1998, for most provisions. The Amendments changed the financial and
reporting structure of guarantee agencies such as the Foundation. The Amendments required the
establishment of a Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund (Federal Fund) and Guarantee Agency Operating
Fund (Operating Fund) to account for the FFEL Program activities.

The Federal Fund assets and earnings on those assets are the property of the Federal government and are
limited to paying lender claims, default aversion fees, and under certain circumstances, account
maintenance fees to the Foundation's operating fund. All existing reserve funds, securities, and other
liquid assets at October 1, 1998, were deposited into the Foundation's Federal Fund. Additional ongoing
deposits into the Foundation's Federal Fund include reinsurance payments, the complement of
reinsurance on default collections, the ED's equitable share of collections, guarantee fees charged to
borrowers, and Federal Fund interest income. The Foundation acts in a custodian capacity for this Fund.
The resources of this Fund cannot be used to support the Foundation's operations. As a result, this Fund
is not reported in the consolidated financial statements of the Company. See note 13 for additional details
of amounts held for ED.

The Foundation's operating fund is without donor restriction and the property of the Foundation. ED
may not regulate the uses or expenditures of these funds. The Foundation's operating fund is used for the
administration of the programs authorized by Title IV Part B of the HEA, as amended, and other related
activities under the statute. Deposits into this fund include account maintenance fees paid by ED on all
outstanding loan guarantees, default aversion fees paid from the Federal Fund, loan consolidation fees,
and collections on defaulted loans (loan rehabilitation fees) after remitting ED's share to the Federal Fund.
See also notes I and 14.

Management Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
most significant estimate used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is the allowance
for losses on student loans.

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
when purchased, other than restricted cash, to be cash equivalents.

The Company maintains cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed amounts guaranteed
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company has not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believes it is not e.xposed to any significant risk of loss on cash and cash equivalents.



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Company has restricted cash of $22,149,451 and $ 19,799,097,
respectively, in Wells Fargo Bank Advantage Funds 100% Treasury (the Fund) under restrictions set forth
in the floating rate note and variable rate demand bonds for the payment of bond principal, interest, and
certain fees (see also note 6). The Fund seeks current income exempt from most state and local individual
income taxes, while preserving capital and liquidity. The Fund invests exclusively in high-quality, short-
term money market instruments that consist of U.S. Treasury obligations. The difference between the
invested balance and restricted cash recorded in the 2022 and 2021 consolidated statements ot financial
position is due to deposits in transit of $905,239 and $417,150 at September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

fnvestmeni Securilies

Investment securities are carried at fair value. Net investment return in the consolidated statements of
activities and changes in net assets includes both unrealized and realized investment gains and losses and
interest and dividend income net of investment fees. Realized gains and losses are based on the specific
identification of the related investments.

The Company invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various risks,
such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment
securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the value of investment securities will occur in
the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements. The investments in the Vanguard Total Stock Market Index Fund totaling $16,661,534
exceeded 10% of investment securities at September 30, 2022. The investments in the Vanguard Total
Stock Market Index Fund and Western Asset Ultra Short Income Fund totaling $19,918,533 and
$18,41 1,369, respectively, exceeded 10% of investment securities at September 30, 2021.

Revenue Recosnilion

The Company accounts for revenues under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 606, Revenuefrom
Contracts with Customers, and determines the amount of revenue to be recognized through application
of the following steps:

•  Identification of the contract with a customer;

•  Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;
•  Determination of the transaction price;

•  Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
•  Recognition of revenue when or as the Company satisfies the performance obligations.

Revenues are recognized when performance obligations are satisfied, or attributable to the period in which
specific terms of the funding agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred
for the purposes specified by the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts
are deferred until any restrictions are met or allowable e.xpenditures are incurred.

10



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30. 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Student Loans

Student loans consist of guaranteed student loans and private loans which are made to post-secondary
students attending eligible educational institutions and guaranteed parental loans made to parents of
dependent undergraduate students, graduate and professional students and independent undergraduate
students attending eligible educational institutions. Student loans also include consolidation loans which
are loans to eligible borrowers that combine two or more existing student loans and extend the repayment
period. Student loans are stated at their unpaid principal balance plus the unamortized amount of loan
origination costs paid to disburse the loans. Loan origination costs are deferred and recognized as a
reduction of interest income on student loans over the estimated life of student loans on a method which
approximates the level yield. Interest on student loans is recognized as revenue in the period earned. The
Company considers student loans past due upon 15 days after payment due date.

ED makes quarterly interest subsidy payments on guaranteed loans on behalf of certain qualified
borrowers until the borrower is required to begin repayment. Repayment on Stafford Student Loans
normally begins within six months after borrowers complete their course of study, leave school or cease
to carry at least one-half the normal full-time academic load as determined by the educational institution.
Repayment of PLUS, SLS and Consolidation loans normally begins within sixty days from the date of
loan disbursement unless a deferment of payments has been granted. In these cases, full repayment of
principal and interest would resume at the expiration of the deferment. Interest accrues during this
deferment period.

ED provides a special allowance to lenders participating in the Stafford, PLUS, SLS, and Consolidation
student loan programs. Special allowance is paid based on a rate that is established quarterly. For loans
first disbursed before January I, 2000, the rate is based on the average rate established in the auction of
the thirteen-week U.S. Treasury bill, plus a pre-determined factor, less the interest rate on the loan. For
loans first disbursed on or after January I, 2000, financed with obligations issued after October I, 1993,
the rate is based on 1-month LIBOR, plus a pre-determined factor, less the interest rate on the loan. On
March 15, 2022, the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act (LIBOR Act) was signed into law. The LIBOR
Act establishes a uniform benchmark replacement process for LIBOR, which is scheduled to be phased
out by June 30, 2023. Among other things, the LIBOR Act amended section 438(b)(2)(l) of the HEA, as
amended. This new provision requires FFEL Program lenders to transition away from LIBOR based
special allowance payments to a new formula set by the law based on SOFR. The transition may occur
any time on or before June 30, 2023. However, a FFEL Program lender must transition to the SOFR
based special allowance payment calculation by July 1, 2023, as a condition of continued participation in
FFEL Program.

Interest on student loans is recognized as revenue in the period earned on guaranteed student loans and
until a private loan defaults after 180 days past due. Special allowance is recognized as revenue in the
period earned on guaranteed student loans.

II



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Allowance for Loan Losses

Student loans consist of guaranteed and private loans. Guaranteed student loans were primarily
guaranteed by the Foundation through September 30, 2021 (Trellis beginning on October 1, 2021 as
discussed in note I) and substantially all such loans are reinsured by ED. Private loans have no guarantee
and there is the risk that guaranteed loans may lose their guarantee and become uncollectible under certain
circumstances. Student loans originated under the FFEL Program subsequent to July I, 2006, are only
reinsured for 97% of the principal amount. Student loans under the FFEL Program originated on or after
October 1, 1993 and before July 1, 2006, are reinsured for 98% of the principal amount. Student loans
under the FFEL Program originated prior to October I, 1993,are 100% reinsured. At September 30, 2022
and 2021, NHHELCO's student loans under the FFEL Program are subject to a minimum of 97%
guarantee. Therefore, management of NHHELCO has established an allowance for loan losses to provide
for probable losses. The amount of the allowance, which is established through a provision for losses on
student loans charged to expense, is based on management's estimation of the probable losses within the
portfolio. In estimating the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, management considers such factors
as the nature and volume of the portfolio, historical default rates, the percentage of loans guaranteed and
their guaranteed percentage and current economic conditions that may affect the borrowers' ability to
repay. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Loans are charged-off when deemed
uncollectible.

Direct Loan Servicine

Prior to electing not to renew this contract, NHHELCO serviced federally-owned student loans for ED.
The Company earned a monthly fee for each unique borrower, which was recorded as revenue when
earned. See note 14 regarding discontinuing the direct loan servicing contract.

Account Maintenance Fees

Account maintenance fees were accrued when earned from ED. This fee was based on 0.06% of the

original principal amount of FFEL Program loan guarantees.

Rehabilitation and Consolidation Fees

Rehabilitation fees on defaulted loans were charged to a borrower as provided under the FFEL Program
for which the borrower had made nine consecutive payments at 16.0% of the loan balance due. The fee
was nonrefundable. Consolidation fees were primarily charged to a borrower as provided under the FFEL
Program and were based on consolidating defaulted loans. Rehabilitation and consolidation fees were
recorded as revenue when the performance obligation had been met.

12



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Default Aversion Fees

Default aversion fees were recognized for default aversion activities on delinquent loans at the time the
lenders requested default aversion assistance and the assistance was provided. At the time the guaranty
agency received a request from the lender for assistance and the assistance was provided, a one-time fee
equal to 1.0% of the principal and accrued Interest on the loan was payable from the Foundation's Federal
Fund to the Foundation's operating fund. However, the fee was required to be refunded to the
Foundation's Federal Fund in the event the loan was later paid as a default claim. Accordingly, deferred
revenue had been established and recorded as a llabilit)' in the 2021 consolidated statement of financial
position based upon an estimate of amounts to be refunded to the Federal Fund. See note I relating to the
payment made to the successor guarantor agency In 2022 to transfer all future liability.

Purchases ofDefaulted Loans

Purchases by the Foundation of guaranteed student loans in default were recorded as a receivable from
ED at the time of notice of default from the lending Institution based upon the estimated reimbursement
to be received from ED. The Foundation was reimbursed for claims submitted to ED in accordance with

a schedule as described In note 12.

A liability to ED for the reinsured portion of defaulted loans subsequently collected was recorded at the
time such collections were received by the Foundation.

Debt Issuance Costs / Orieinal Issue Discounts

The original issue discounts and debt Issuance costs are presented as a reduction of the face amount of
the notes payable. Original Issue discounts are being amortized using the effective Interest rate method
as a component of Interest expense. Debt issuance costs Incurred in obtaining fmancing arrangements are
being amortized on the straight-line basis over the estimated term of the related financing arrangements,
which approximates the effective yield method.

Propern'. Plant and Eauip/nent

Propert)', plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Costs Incurred by the
Company in the development of softvs'are used to provide services to customers or Internal administration
services are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. The provision for depreciation and amortization
has been computed on the straight-line method at rates Intended to amortize the cost of related assets over
their estimated useful lives.

13



NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Accrual for Estimated Loss on Serviced Loans

As part of the Company's servicing of FFEL Program loans and loans originated under the Federal Direct
Loan Program (prior to the expiration of this contract in 2022) and private loans, the Company was
required to indemnity' the institutions in the event the serviced loans lose their guarantee, or are otherwise
uncollectible as a result of defects in the Company's servicing. The indemnification on Federal Direct
Loans is limited to servicing fees. As a result of the indemnification, the Company had established an
accrual for estimated losses on serviced loans. The accrual was based, in part, on the amount of FFEL
Program loans and private loans serviced (approximately $734,000,000 at September 30, 2021), related
servicing fees on Federal Direct Loans and the Company's analysis of the risk of defaults in the portfolio.
In 2022 and 2021 the Company paid no amounts related to claims made on certain loans with servicing
defects. In 2022, the Company concluded that the accrual for estimated loss on serviced loans was no
longer necessary (see note 14).

Aclvertisim Costs

The Company expenses all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expenses for the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021 were approximately $406,800 and $324,600, respectively.

Risks and Uncerlainlies

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) a
pandemic. The COVID-19 outbreak could negatively impact, for some period of time, the overall
economy as well as certain business segments, including the student loan industry. Investment markets
have experienced increased volatility which could negatively affect the carrying value of the Company's
investments. On April 3, 2020, ED issued certain provisions applicable to the Company in regards to the
COVID-19 outbreak. The Company was instructed to stop collection activities on FFEL Program
defaulted loans, which is currently extended through June 30, 2023; and must follow other administrative
requirements during this period. As allowed by ED, the Federal Fund reimbursed the Operating Fund
approximately $682,000 in 2021 for lost revenues that the Foundation could not reasonably collect due
to these instructions to stop collection activities on the FFEL Program defaulted loans. Any potential
future impact on the Company's operations is unknown at this time.

Income Taxes

The Company has received a determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service stating that it
qualifies for ta.x-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been included in the financial statements.

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax
position they have historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income
or tax status. Under guidance issued by the FASB, assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax
positions taken or positions expected to be taken in income tax returns when such positions are judged to
not meet the "more-likely-than-not'" threshold, based upon the technical merits of the position. Estimated
interest and penalties, if applicable, related to uncertain tax positions are included as a component of
income tax expense.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

GBS, EDvestinU Private Loan Issue No. 1, LLC, EDvestinU Private Loan Issue No. 2, LLC, EDvestinU
Private Loan Issue No. 3, LLC and EDvestinU Private Loan Issue No. 4, LLC are subject to federal and
state tax laws, as applicable. They recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and for loss and other carryfor\vards. These assets and
liabilities are measured using rates expected to be in effect when differences reverse. Valuation
allowances are provided to the extent that tax assets are not likely to be recovered. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities at September 30, 2022 and 2021 were not significant.

Under guidance issued by the FASB, assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken
or positions expected to be taken in income tax returns when such positions are Judged to not meet the
"more-likely-than-not" threshold, based upon the technical merits of the position. Estimated interest and
penalties, if applicable, related to uncertain tax positions are included as a component of income tax
expense.

The Company has evaluated the positions taken on its filed tax returns. The Company has concluded no
uncertain income tax positions exist at September 30, 2022 or 2021.

Functional Allocalion of Expenses

The costs of providing program services and general and administrative activities have been summarized
on a functional basis in note 11. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among program services and
general and administrative services benefitted.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement ''

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. The amendments in this ASU affect entities
holding financial assets and net investment in leases that are not accounted for at fair value through net
income. The main objective of this ASU is to provide financial statement users with more decision-useful
information about the expected credit losses on financial instruments and other commitments to extend
credit held by a reporting entity at each reporting date. To achieve this objective, the amendments in this
ASU replace the incurred loss impairment methodology in current U.S. GAAP with a methodology that
reflects expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of reasonable and supportable
information to inform credit loss. This ASU also requires enhanced disclosures to help investors and
other financial statement users better understand significant estimates and judgments used in estimating
credit losses, as well as the credit qualit>' and underwriting standards of a reporting entity's portfolio.
Additionally, this ASU amends the accounting for credit losses on purchased financial assets with credit
deterioration. The FASB has issued subsequent ASUs which have extended the original effective date
from October 1, 2021 to October I, 2023. The Company will apply the amendments in this update
through a cumulative-effect adjustment to net assets as of the beginning of the first reporting period in
which the guidance is effective (that is, a modifled-retrospective approach). Management is currently
assessing the impact of the adoption of ASU 2016-13 on its consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Suhsequenl Events

Events occurring after the consolidated statement of financial position date are evaluated by management
to determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 21, 2022, which is the date
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

3. LiQuiditv and Resources

Financial assets available for general expenditure, such as for operating expenses, and that are without
other restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the 2022 consolidated statement of financial
position date (September 30, 2022), comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1 1,396,881
Accounts receivable, other 1,297,189
Amounts due from U.S. Government - subsidized interest and other 709,545

Investment securities 106.279.217

S 1 I9.682.832

To manage liquidity, the Company maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support daily
operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits, money market funds,
and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily liquidity to the Company. In
addition, student loan payments of principal and interest will continue to be made to allow the Company
to pay down debt.

4. Investment Securities

Investments, at fair value, are as follows at September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Mutual funds $ 84,947,884 $ 1 19,638,161
Exchange traded funds 15,584,446 22,346,590
Alternative investments;

Global equity 2,462,445 3,760,658
Global real estate 3.284.442 4.292.838

S 106.279.217 $ 150.038.247
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NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30. 2022 and 2021

4. Investment Securities

Net investment return consists of the following;

Interest and dividend income

Net realized and unrealized (losses) gains on investments
Investment fees

Net investment return

2022 2021

$  2,797,807 $2,180,577

(22,952,485) 17,403,462
(335.965) (338.881)

$(20.490.643) $19.245.158

5. Student Loans

Student loans bear annual fixed or variable interest rates ranging from 2.88% to 1 1.55%. Most of the
Company's borrowers are located in the New England states, primarily in the State of New Hampshire.

ED restricts student loan interest revenue for loans first disbursed on or after April 1,2006. The Company
is required to return borrower loan interest in excess of the special allowance formula rales for certain
Stafford, PLUS and Consolidation loans to ED. The return of interest totaled $2,403,759 and.$3,507,630
in 2022 and 2021, respectively, and is reflected as a reduction of net interest benefits and special
allowance on student loans in the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.

Student loans are classified as being in "interim" status during the period from the date the loan is made
until a student is out of school either for six or nine months. Subsequent to this period, student loans are
classified as being in "repayment" status. "Deferral" status is a period during the life of the loan when
repayment is suspended for authorized purposes.

Management has determined that the FFEL student loans and private loans are portfolio segments.
NHHELCO does not disaggregate its portfolio segments into classes of receivables. Loans within each
segment are evaluated collectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30. 2022 and 2021

5. Student Loans ̂Continued)

Student loans held for investment at September 30, 2022 and 2021 are summarized as follows:

2022 2021

FFEL Private FFEL Private

Loans Loans Loans Loans

Status:

Interim status $  90,232 $ 122,544,913 S  168,569 $ 124,081,975

Deferral status 5,640,862 20,467,644 8,315,993 16,448,833

Repayment status:
Current 149.497,931 455,347,401 210,383,742 353,910,686

Noncurrent 28,975,017 1 1,228,919 13,527,350 7,015,51 1

Deferred loan origination
7,493,388costs, net of amortization -

9,810,417 -

Less: allowance for loan losses n 73.962) r28.781.5in (1 14.807) (24.885.193)

Total student loans $ 184 030.080 $ 590 617 783 $ 93? ?8n 847 $ 484 065 700

2022 2021

Guarantee type:

U.S. Department of Education:
$ 232,324,192Guaranteed $ 184,153,802

Loss guarantee 50,240 71,462

Other - nonguaranteed 609,588,877 501,457,005

Deferred loan origination costs,
net of amortization 9,810,417 7,493,388

Less: allowance for loan losses f28.955.473) (25.000.000)

Total student loans ^ 774iH7i§^J

The student loans are pledged to the repayment of notes payable and lines of credit outstanding.

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 202! were as
follows:

2022 202J
FFEL Private FFEL Private

Loans Loans Loans Loans

Balance, October I $ 1 14.807 $24,885,193 $ 131.089 $23,568,911
Provision for losses on student'loans 254,538 5,680,776 56,388 1,705,811
Loans charged off (195,383) (2,356,393) (72,670) (862,543)
Recoveries ^71,935 —473iOM

Balance, September 30 $ 173.962 $28,781.511 $ 114.807 $24.885.193
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

5. Student Loans (Continued)

The following table presents an aging analysis of past due loans as of September 30, 2022 and 2021.

2022 2021

FFEL Private FFEL Private

Loans Loans Loans Loans

31-60 days past due $ 5,787,779 $ 5,650.096 $ 4.169,518 $3,692,160
61-90 days past due 3,225,31 1 2,608,227 1,722,643 1,451,453
Greater than 90 days past due 18,470,961 2,970,596 6,694,659 1,871,898

Claims filed 1.490.966 _ 940.530 _

Total past due $28,975,017 $1 1,228,919 $13,527,350 ,701,,I I

At September 30, 2022 and 2021 substantially all delinquent FFEL loans were re-insured by ED.

Loan Commilments

At September 30, 2022, NHHELCO had commitments to extend credit for private loans of approximately
$24,954,000. Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a borrower as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the commitment agreement. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses. NFIHELCO uses the same credit policies in making
commitments as it does for student loans.

6. Debt

NHHELCO has outstanding the following notes at September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Asset-Backed Notes 2016-1 (2016 ABN) issued August 4, 2016.
Taxable; Redeemable on a monthly basis with the collections on
student loans, after paying interest and reasonable fee and
expenses. All principal payments are applied to Class A Notes
(paid in full in 2022), then Class B Notes until paid in full;
maturing October 26, 2037, then Class C Notes; maturing
June 27, 2039:

Class A Notes $ - $ 12.741.968

Class B Notes 13,502,623 14,000,000
Class C Notes 7,200,000 7,200,000

Asset-Backed Notes 2019-1 (2019 ABN) issued April 18,2019.
Taxable; Redeemable on a monthly basis with the collections on
student loans, after paying interest and reasonable fee and
expenses. All principal payments are applied to Class A Notes
until paid in full; maturing November 25, 2038, then Class B
Notes until paid in full; maturing November 25, 2043:

Class A Notes 65,832,071 96,723,348
C lass B Notes 31,000,000 31,000,000

19
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2022 and 2021

6. Debt (Continued)

2022 2021

Taxable Student Loan-Backed Notes issued October 15, 2020.

Redeemable on a monthly basis with the collections on student
loans, after paying interest and reasonable fees and expenses. All
principal payments are applied to Class A-1A and Class A1-B

Notes until paid in full, maturing September 25, 2060, then
Class 8 Notes until paid in full; maturing December 25, 2060:

Class A-1 A Notes $ 84,835,271 $109,521,577
Class A-1 B Notes 84,835,271 109,521.577
Class B Notes 6,600,000 6,600,000

Asset-Backed Notes 2021-1 (2021 ABN) issued March 11,2021.
Taxable; Redeemable on a monthly basis with the collections on
student loans, after paying interest and reasonable fee and
expenses. All principal payments are applied to Class A Notes
until paid in full; maturing November 25, 2045. then Class B
Notes until paid in full; maturing November 25, 2050:

Class A Notes 159,624,391 200,682,298
Class B Notes 32,000,000 32,000,000

Asset-Backed Notes 2022-1 (2022 ABN) issued September 29,
2022. Taxable; Redeemable on a monthly basis with the
collections on student loans, after paying interest and reasonable
fee and expenses. All principal payments are applied to Class A
Notes until paid in full; maturing November 25, 2040, then
Class B Notes until paid in full; maturing November 25, 2045:

Class A Notes 161,750,000

Class B Notes 21.000.000 ^

668,179,627 619,990,768
Less: unamortized original issue discount (6,136,847) (1,949,651)
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (8.214.267) (7.824.068)

All bonds and notes payable are limited obligations of NHHELCO and are secured, as provided in the
underlying bond and note indentures, by an assignment and pledge to the Trustee of all NHHELCO's
rights, title and interest in certain student loans and revenues derived thereon and the guarantee thereof,
including the insurance of certain student loans by ED. In addition, a significant portion of restricted cash
is held in trust to secure the bonds.

Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes payable and all revenues thereon are held in trust and are
restricted as follows: to retire bonds, originate student loans, repurchase student loans on a restricted
basis, pay interest on the bonds, maintain required reserves and pay reasonable and necessary expenses.

In the event LIBOR is discontinued while an agreement remains in place, a replacement rate will be
assigned, as determined by the bank.
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6. Debt (Continued)

Private Education Loan Asset-Backed Noles

NHHELCO issued the 2016 ABN taxable notes through EDvestinU Private Loan Issue No. I, LLC, a
subsidiar)'. The interest on these Private Education Loan Asset-Backed Notes resets and is paid monthly
with the Class A notes interest rate at I-month LIBOR plus 1.25% (paid in full in 2022), Class B Notes

interest rate at 1-month LIBOR plus 1.50%, and Class C Notes interest at 1-month LIBOR plus 1.75%.
As of September 30, 2022, 2016 ABN had interest rates ranging from 4.58% to 4.83%. The 2016 ABN
contains covenants with which NHHELCO was in compliance at September 30, 2022 and 2021.

NHHELCO issued the 2019 ABN taxable notes through EDvestinU Private Loan Issue No. 2, LLC, a
subsidiar)'. The interest on these Private Education Loan Asset-Backed Notes is paid monthly, with the
Class A notes interest rate fixed at 3.58%, and the Class B Notes interest rate fixed at 4.49%. The 2019

ABN contains covenants with which NHHELCO was in compliance at September 30, 2022 ajid 2021.

On March 1 1, 2021, NHHELCO issued the 2021 ABN ta,\able notes through EDvestinU Private Loan
Issue No. 3, LLC, a subsidiary, totaling $255,600,000 with an original issue discount of $567,325. The
interest on these Private Education Loan Asset-Backed Notes is paid monthly, with the Class A Notes
interest rate fi.xed at 1.80%, and the Class B Notes interest rate fi.xed at 3.50%. The 2021 ABN contains

covenants with which NHHELCO was in compliance at September 30, 2022 and 2021.

On September 29, 2022, NHHELCO issued the 2022 ABN taxable notes through EDvestinU Private Loan
Issue No. 4, LLC, a subsidiary, totaling $182,750,000 with an original issue discount of $4,919,925. The
interest on these Private Education Loan Asset-Backed Notes is paid monthly, with the Class A Notes
interest rate fi.xed at 5.25%, and the Class B Notes interest rate fixed at 6.25%. The 2022 ABN contains

covenants with which NHHELCO was in compliance at September 30, 2022.

Taxable Student Loan Backed Notes

On October 15, 2020, NHHELCO issued the Ta.\able Student Loan-Backed Noles (TSLBN) 2020-1
Series totaling $257,550,000. The TSLBN 2020-1 notes consist of Class A-1A with an annual interest
rale of 1.55%, A-IB with an interest rate at the 1-month LIBOR plus 1.20% (4.28% at September 30,
2022) and B notes with an interest rate at the 1-month LIBOR plus 2.00% (5.08% at September 30, 2022).
The TSLBN 2020-1 Series contains covenants with which NHHELCO was in compliance at
September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Interest Rate Swap Asreemenls

On July 21, 2022, the Company entered into two interest rate swap agreements with a bank in connection
with the planned 2022 ABN issuance. Upon issuance of the 2022 ABN, the Company terminated the
swap agreements. The Company received $5,055,440 upon termination, which amount was recorded as
a gain on swap terminations in the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of activities and changes
in net assets.
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6. Debt (Continued)

Lines of Credit

NHHELCO has a $38,000,000 revolving line of credit with a bank to provide temporary funding to
originate private non-guaranteed student loans. The line of credit is payable upon demand. In 2022, this
line of credit was amended to change the interest rate to the 1-month Secured Overnight Financing Rate
(SOFR) plus 1.30% (4.15% at September 30, 2022). The line of credit is collateralized by certain mutual
funds, as defined, with a fair value of $23,646,959 and $29,264,683 at September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. There were no amounts outstanding against the line of credit at September 30, 2022 and
2021.

In October 2017, NHHELCO entered into a $125,000,000 warehouse line of credit (the 2017 warehouse)
with a bank to provide temporary funding to originate private non-guaranteed student loans, which was
amended in October 2020 to increase availability to $225,000,000. The 2017 warehouse expires in
October 2023. In 2022, this line of credit was amended to change the interest rate to the 1-month Adjusted
Term SOFR plus 0.85% for loans pledged less than or equal to 18 months outstanding, plus 1.75% for
loans pledged outstanding 18 months to 30 months, and plus 2.00% for loans pledged outstanding greater
than 30 months (3.87% at September 30, 2022). The warehouse line of credit is secured by the private
non-guaranteed loans and reserve accounts. There were no amounts outstanding against the 2017
warehouse at September 30, 2022 and 2021.

The 2017 warehouse line of credit is subject to concentration limitations, as defined, on eligible student
loans and is subject to a minimum asset coverage requirement. At September 30, 2022, NHHELCO was
in compliance with these limits and requirements.

7. Employee Benefit Plan

NHHELCO has a retirement plan pursuant to Section 403(b) of the Code. The Plan allows for deferral
contributions of each participant's eligible compensation (not to exceed the IRS maximum). NHHELCO
employees who are regularly scheduled to work at least twenty hours per week are eligible to make
deferral contributions upon the beginning of employment. The Plan provides for NHHELCO to make a
non-discretionary matching contribution equal to 100% of the employee's deferral contributions, not to
exceed 2% in 2021 through July 31, 2022 and 3% beginning on August 1, 2022 of the employee's salary,
once the participant fulfills the minimum hours worked and age requirements and has completed six
months of credited service. The Plan also provides non-discretionary contributions, as defined, to those
employees qualified under the Service Contract Act. Total amounts expensed under the Plan were
approximately $194,000 and $31 1,000 for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Employees are immediately 100% vested in all non-discretionary employer contributions.

NHHELCO may elect to make discretionary non-elective employer contributions to the Plan which are
allocated to participants uniformly based upon relative compensation. Employees who have fulfilled the
minimum hours worked, attained the age of twenty-one years, and have completed two years of service
are eligible to receive these discretionary non-elective employer contributions. Employees are
immediately 100% vested in all discretionary non-elective employer contributions. NHHELCO made
discretionary contributions of $138,000 and $173,000 to the Plan participants for the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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8. Property. Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at September 30;

2022 2021

Land $ 687,587 $ 687,587

Buildings and improvements 9,372,093 9,341,460
Furniture and fixtures 1,395,512 1,395,512

Computer equipment and software 4.821.123 5.151.854

16,276,315 16,576,413

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (14.046.2071 (13.563.8591

3ni2.554

9. Fair Value Measurements

The FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.
establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1
measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels
of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Company has the abilit)' to access.

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include:

•  Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;

•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
•  Inputs which are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable
for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

The fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input
that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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9. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Investments

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for investments measured at fair value at
September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Mutual funds and exchange traded funds: Valued at the closing price reported in the active market on
which the individual securities are traded.

Alternative Investments: Valued at the net asset value of units held or the Company's proportionate share
of fund net assets at year end, as determined by the limited partnerships or investment funds (the Funds),
based on quoted market prices or the best estimate of what market participants would use in pricing the
underlying investments at the measurement date.

It is Company management's responsibility to determine the fair value. For alternative investments,
management utilizes information provided by the general partner or investment managers based in part
on the latest audited or unaudited financial statements or performance reports of the underlying
investment partnerships or other investment vehicles to determine the fair value of the total net assets.
These investments are redeemable with the investment fund at net asset value or the Company's
proportionate share of net assets under the original terms of the subscription agreements and operations
of the underlying investment funds. However, it is possible that these redemption rights may be restricted
or eliminated by the investment funds in the future in accordance with the underlying investment fund
agreements. Due to the nature of the investments held by the investment funds, changes in market
conditions and the economic environment may significantly impact the net asset value of the investment
funds and, consequently, the fair value of the Company's interests in the investment funds. Furthermore,
changes to the liquidity provisions of the investment funds may significantly impact the fair value of the
Company's interest in the investment funds.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
. realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Company believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date. Management believes that reported fair values of its investments
at the balance sheet dates are reasonable.
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9. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Fair Value on a Recurrins Basis

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Company's investments
recorded at fair value as of September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022

Exchange-traded funds:
Small cap
Intermediate bond

Large cap growth
Large value and dividend
Short bond

Mutual funds:

Fixed income

Commodity
Real estate

Balanced

Equity
International emerging markets
Large cap growth
Large value and dividend
Short bond

SMID cap value

Total investment securities in

fair value hierarchy

Alternative investments measured at

net asset value:

Global equity
Global real estate

Total investment securities

Level

513,507

8.527,265

1.038,324

1,592,028

3,913,322

25,531,619

560,868

581,483

4,897,538

31,275,972

2,338.489

9,666,530

4,650,212

4.025,021

1.420.152

Level 2 Level 3

S IQQ.532.33Q S -

Total

513,507

8,527,265

1,038,324

1,592,028

3,913,322

25,531,619

560,868

581,483

4,897,538

31,275,972

2,338,489

9,666,530

4,650,212

4,025,021

1.420.152

100.532.330

2,462,445
3.284.442
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9. Fair Value Measurements fContinucd)

2021

Exchange-traded funds:
Small cap
Intermediate bond

Large cap growth
Large value and dividend
Midcap value
Short bond

Mutual funds:

Fixed income

Commodity

Real estate

Balanced

Equity
International value

International emerging markets
International growth
Large cap growth
Large value and dividend
Short bond

SMID cap value

Total iiivestment securities in

fair value hierarchy

Alternative investments measured at

net asset value:

Global equity

Global real estate

Total investment securities

Level

2,019,249
10,199,764

1,853,607

2,182,300

1,353,379

4,738,291

47,089,355

755,859

733,797

5,863,421

38,501,188

1,392,462

3,574,344

1,586,317

6,730,385

6,153,298

5,593,931

1.663.804

Level 2 Level 3 Total

2,019,249
10,199,764

1,853,607

2,182.300

1,353,379

4,738,291

47.089,355

755,859

733,797

5,863,421

38,501,188

1,392,462

3,574,344

1,586,317

6,730,385

6,153,298

5,593,931

1.663.804

141,984,75

3,760,658

4.292.838

For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, the application of valuation techniques to similar
assets and liabilities is consistent.

In accordance with ASC 820-10, alternative investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset
value per share practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the
amounts presented in the consolidated statements of financial position.
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9. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Information About Allernaiive Inveslmenis Measured at Net Assel Value per Share

Alternative investments

Global Equit)' is organized primarily to afford participants an opportunity to obtain long-term capital

gains and income from a diversified portfolio of mid and smaller capitalization equity securities generally
located in any countr>' other than the United States and Canada. The Company may withdraw all or part

of its balance without restrictions as of the month end provided written notice is given at least six days
prior to the withdrawal.

Global Real Estate investment objective is to generate net returns in excess of the UBS Global Real Estate
Investor Index through the creation and active management of a portfolio of publicly traded equit>'
securities issued by real estate investment trusts and other publicly held real estate companies primarily
in North America, Europe, Australia and Asia. The Company may generally withdraw ail or any portion
of the Company's balance as of the last business day of each month, upon not less than 15 business days'
prior written notice, subject to certain minimum withdrawal amounts.

Redemption Frequency

There were no unfunded commitments as of September 30, 2022. The redemption frequency of the
alternative investments at September 30, 2022 is summarized as follows;

Redemption
Redemption Freauencv Notice Period

Global equity Monthly 6 days
Global real estate Monthly 15 days

10. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has a hosted service license agreement with a third-party for loan servicing support. The
agreement is subject to renewal options. This contract provides loan servicing support for the Company's
loan portfolios (FFEL Program and private non-guaranteed student loans) and the loans serviced by the
Company owned by ED. As further described in notes I and 14, as of 2022 the Company no longer
services loans on behalf of ED, therefore the Company renegotiated and amended this contract with the
third-party in 2022. As part of the renegotiations, the Company accrued $5,000,000 in the September 30,
2021 accompanying consolidated statement of financial position as a settlement fee payable to a third-
party. This amount was paid to the third-party in 2022. Under the amended contract, the base annual
minimum usage fees are approximately $1,500,000.

The Company participates in the FFEL Program. The program is subject to financial and compliance
audits by ED and resolution of identified compliance issues. The amount, if any, of program revenues
which may be disallowed by the ED cannot be determined at this time.
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September 30, 2022 and 2021

11. Functional Allocation of Expenses

The Company provides financial assistance to eligible students as described in note 1. Expenses related
to providing these services are as Follows for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021:

Program

General and

Administrative Total

2022

Interest expense

Salaries and fringe benefits
Consolidation loan fees

Bond administration expenses

Borrower rebates

Administrative and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for losses on student loans

202

$16,823,546 $
9,012,566

1,614,304

679,524

1,770,150

6,804,427

865,198

5.935.314

$16,823,546
1,301,113 10,313,679

1,614.304

679,524

1,770,150

7,505,073

965,172

700,646

99,974

5.935.314

$43.505.029 $2.101.733 $45.606.762

Interest expense
Salaries and fringe benefits
Consolidation loan fees

Bond administration expenses
Borrower rebates

Administrative arid other expenses

Depreciation and amortization
Provision for losses on student loans

$15,905,505

10,195,1 19

1,916,603

454,076

1,389,989

5,230,094

931,233

1.762.199

1,302,596

606,852

1 1 1,902

$15,905,505
1 1,497,715

1,916,603

454,076

1,389,989
5,836,946

1,043,135

1.762.199

SUJMm S2.021..3.50

The consolidated financial statements report certain expense categories that are attributable to more than
one program or support function. Therefore, these expenses require an allocation on a reasonable basis
that is consistently applied. Costs not directly attributable to a function, such as depreciation and
amortization, are allocated to a function based on square footage. Supporting activities that are not
directly identifiable with a program are classified as general and administrative. If it is impossible or
impractical to make a direct identification, allocation of the expenses were made according to
management's estimates. Employee benefits are allocated in accordance with the ratio of salaries and
wages of the functional classes. Specifically identifiable costs are assigned to the function to which they
are identified. See also Note 14.
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12. Contingent Liabilit\'- Federal Fund

Federal Reinsurance on Sludent Loans

The HEA, as amended, provided for reinsurance of amounts paid in connection with defaulted guaranteed
student loans. Prior to December 1, 2015 the percentage of loans reimbursed was dependent upon the
Foundation's default rate experience and the loan origination date. Beginning on December 1, 2015

through the date that the Foundation ceased functioning as a FFEL Program guarantee agency (see note 1),
the percentage of claims to be reimbursed by ED into the Federal Fund is as follows:

Annual

Default Rate Federal Reinsurance Loans Disbursed

0% to 5% 100% of claims

5% to 9% 100% of claims up to 5%, and 85% of claims
between 5% and 9%

Over 9% 100% of claims up to 5%, 85% of claims between
5% and 9%, and 75% of the remainder

The annual default rate was calculated by dividing claims for the year by the original guaranteed amount
of loans in repayment at the beginning of the year. The rate was determined annually, as of September 30,
and was effective for the subsequent twelve-month period. Since December 1, 2015, the Foundation was
reimbursed by ED at 100% of claims submitted. Prior to December I 2015, the Foundation was
reimbursed 100% of claims submitted for loans first disbursed prior to October I, 1993, 98% for loans
first disbursed on or after October 1, 1993, but prior to October 1, 1998, and 95% for loans first disbursed
on or after October 1. 1998.

Any subsequent collections on defaulted loans which had been previously reimbursed by ED were
refunded to ED. For 2007 and prior years, the Foundation was entitled to retain approximately 23% of
the gross amount of such collections in recognition of the costs associated with the collection effort.
Effective October 1,2007, with the enactment of the College Cost Reduction and Access Act, the rate was
reduced to 16%.

The amount of outstanding guaranteed student loans was approximately $294,000,000 at September 30,
2021. Defaults on FFEL Program loan guarantees were paid by ED through the Federal Fund.
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13. Amounts Held for the U.S. Department of Education

A summary of the Foundation's Federal Fund assets and liabilities as of September 30, 2022 and 2021 is
as follows:

2022 2021

Assets:

Cash $ 4,121,765 $ 3,865,424

Investments 5,136,781 6,656,017

Interest receivable 24.800 30.261

Total assets $ 9.283.346 S 10.551.702

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $  3,625 $  22,248

Due to Operating Fund - 737,715

Amounts due to U.S. Department of Education - collections
on defaulted loans, net - 99,720

Federal loan reserve fund held for U.S. Department of
Education 9.279.721 9.692.019

Total liabilities % 9.283.346 $10,551,702

Changes in the Federal loan reserve funds held for the U.S. Department of Education for the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021, were as follows:

2022 2021

Additions:

Reimbursement from ED on defaulted loan purchases $ $ 7,343,978

Investment income 140,288 153,137

Net realized and unrealized losses on investments (543,866) (167,522)

Other income, primarily rehabilitation fees — 5.650

Total additions (403,578) 7,335,243

Deductions:

Purchases of defaulted loans from lenders - 7,343,978

Default aversion fees - (3,536)

Other disbursements, primarily investment fees 8.720 15,530

Lost revenues to Operating Fund — 682.071

Total deductions 8.720 8.038.043

Net change (412,298) (702,800)

Federal loan reserve funds held at beginning of year 9.692.019 10.394.819

Federal loan reserve funds held at end of year S 9.279.721 $__9.692dll^
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13. Amounts Held for the U.S. Department of Education (Continued)

The HEA required the Foundation to maintain cash reserves equal to 0.25% of student loans guaranteed.
The Foundation maintained sufficient reserves to fully comply with this requirement throughout fiscal
year 2021, when such requirement ended.

14. Discontinued Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include two lines of business that are reported as
discontinued operations for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, as follows:

•  Guaranty Agency: On February 9,2021, management of the Foundation notified the ED's FSA

of its decision to cease functioning as an FFEL Program guarantee agency. All revenues earned
from ED, including account maintenance fees, loan consolidation fees, loan rehabilitation fees
and default aversion fees, and operating e.xpenses associated with the Foundation providing
FFEL Program guarantee agency services, have been presented as discontinued operations.
There were no significant assets or liabilities associated with this line of business at
September 30, 2022 and 2021.

•  FSA Contract: As described in note 1, NHHELCO ceased providing loan servicing to ED in
2022. All direct loan servicing fee revenue earned and operating expenses associated with this
line of business have been presented as discontinued operations. Associated with this contract
termination in accordance with ASC420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations, NHHELCO
accrued certain costs at September 30, 2021, including salary and related benefits of terminated
employees totaling approximately $605,000. and the $5,000,000 settlement fee described in
note 10. These amounts were paid in 2022. There were no other significant assets or liabilities
associated with this line of business at September 30, 2022 or 2021.

Management of the Company has determined that the discontinuance of each of these lines of business
meet the criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to discontinue these lines of
business were based on various factors, including strategic planning regarding the future of the Company.

Summary statements of activities for each of the above discontinued lines of business for the years ended
September 30, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Guaranty Agency FSA Contract

Revenues and gains
Expenses

Gain from discontinued operations

2022

$ 452,529
(137.866)

2021

$ 1.945.803

(1.904^439)

2022

$ 2.370,060

f 1.1 16.296)

2021

$ 24,058,648
(16.642.175)

$ 314.663 $ 41.364 $ 1.253.764 $ 7.416.473
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NEW HAMPSHIRE HIGHER EDUCATION LOAN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2022

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Interest receivable

Amounts due from U.S. Government —

subsidized interest and other

Investment securities

Private loans, net

Federal Family Education loans, net

Accounts receivable, other
Property, plant and equipment, net
Assets whose use is limited:

Cash collected on serviced loans

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Special allowance and fees payable

to the U.S. Government

Due to related entities

Other liabilities

Deferred revenue

Accrual for estimated loss on serviced

loans

Notes payable, net

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restriction

Total liabilities and net assets

NHHELCO

1 1,320,399

23,054,690

23,330,714

709,545

91,335,895

590,617,783

184,030,080

1,297,189

2,230,108

356,300

31.144

NHHEAF Eliminations Consolidated

76,482 $ -

14,943,322

2,51 1,212

332,146

58,189

653.828.513

656,730,060

980

980

271.583.787 15.018.824

11,396,881

23,054,690

23,330,714

709,545

106,279,217

590,617,783
184,030,080

1,297,189

2,230,108

356,300

31.144

S 928.3 n.847 $15.019.804 $ 943.333.651

2,512,192

332,146

58,189

653.828.513

656,731,040

286.602.61

S15.019.8Q4 $ 943.333.651
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NHHELCO NHHEAF Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Due from affiliated entity
Interest receivable

Amounts due from U.S. Government-

subsidized interest and other

Investment securities

Private loans, net

Federal Family Education loans, net

Due from Federal Fund

Accounts receivable, other

Property, plant and equipment, net
Assets whose use is limited:

Cash collected on serviced loans

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Special allowance and fees payable

to the U.S. Government

Due to affiliated entity
Other liabilities

Deferred revenue

Accrual for estimated loss on

serviced loans

Notes payable, net

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restriction

Total liabilities and net assets

1 1,312,530 $ 124,635

20,216,247

43,200 , -
25,412,064 18,659

(43,200)

1,999,745

131,559,146

484,065,200

232,280,847

52,954

3,012,554

572,935

92.914

8,962,950

281,164

945,659

21 1,583

1,000,000

610.217.049

48,636

18,479,101

737,715

SI 9.408.746

$  364,642 $

43,200

655,000

$  1 1,437,165

20,216,247

25,430,723

2,048,381

150,038,247

484,065,200

232,280,847

737,715

52,954

3,012,554

572,935

92.914

929.985.882

(43,200)

9,327,592

281,164

945,659

21 1,583

655,000

1,000,000

610.217.049

621,618,405 1,062,842 (43,200) 622,638,047

289.001.93 18.345.904 307.347.835

S 910.620.336 SI9.408.746 Sr43.200^
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September 30, 2022

NHHELCO NHHEAF Eliminations Consolidated

Change in net assets without donor restriction:
Revenues and gains:

Interest on student loans

Net interest benefits and special
allowance on student loans

Net investment return

Other income

Gain on swap terminations

Total revenues and gains (losses) without
donor restriction

Expenses:
Interest expense
Salaries and fringe benefits
Consolidation loan fees

Bond administration expenses
Borrower rebates

Administrative and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for losses on student loans

Total expenses

Decrease in net assets before effects of

dissolution of an affiliate

Gain from discontinued operations

Decrease in net assets without donor

restriction

Net assets without restriction at beginning
of year

Net assets without restriction at end of year

$ 40,083,855 $

(1,540,549)

(16,937,895) (3,552,748)
185,008

5.055.440 ^

26,845,859 (3,552,748)

16,823,546

10,313,679

1,614,304

679,524

1,770,150

7,330,073

965,172

5.935.314

175,000

45.431.762 75.000

(18,585,903) (3,727,748)

1.167.759 400.668

(17,418,144) (3,327,080)

289.001.931 18.345.904

$ 40,083,855

(1,540,549)

(20,490,643)
185,008

5.055.440

23,293,1 1 1

16,823,546

10,313,679

1,614,304

679,524

1,770,150

7,505,073

965,172

5.935.314

45.606.762

(22,313,651)

1.568.427

(20,745,224)

307.347.835
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NHHELCO NHHEAF Eliminations Consolidated

Change in net assets without donor restriction:
Revenues and gains:

Interest on student loans

Net interest benefits and special
allowance on student loans

Net investment return

Other income

Total revenues and gains without donor
restriction

Expenses:
Interest expense

Salaries and fringe benefits
Consolidation loan fees

Bond administration expenses
Borrower rebates

Administrative and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for losses on student loans

Total expenses

Increase in net assets before effects of

dissolution of an affiliate

Gain (loss) from discontinued operations

Increase in net assets without donor

restriction

Net assets without restriction at beginning

of year

Net assets without restriction at end of year

$ 38,484,245 $

(3,066,239)

16,140,012 3,105,146
148.293 ■ -

51.706,31 1 3,105,146

15.905,505

1 1,497,715

1,916,603

454,076

1,389,989

5,696,946

1,043,135

1.762.199

39.666.168

140,000

140.000

12,040,143 2,965,146

8.135.099 (677.262)

20,175,242 2,287,884

268.826.689 16.058.020

.1; 289.001.931

$  38,484,245

(3,066,239)

19,245,158

148.293

54,811,457

15,905,505

11,497,715

1,916,603

454,076

1,389,989

5,836,946

1,043,135

1.762.199

39.806.168

15,005,289

7.457.837

22,463,126

284.884.709

307.347.835
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About Us - Granite Edvance

Mission

Our mission at Granite Edvance is to support New Hampshire students and families in navigating their

education and career pathways.

Granite Edvance (formerly the New Hampshire Higher Education Assistance Foundation, or the NHHEAF
Network) has been helping New Hampshire families plan and pay for higher education for over 60 years.

We're a capable and trusted provider of educational loan services. And we provide students, families,
and schools with expertise and support on all parts of college and career planning. We are laser-focused
on one thing - helping you, the students and families of New Hampshire.

We're a S01(c)(3) nonprofit, which means our earnings are reinvested in the New Hampshire.

Granite Edvance is fully committed to serving the students and families of our state. We're here to help
you achieve your goals and dreams.
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Executive Leadership Team

Granite Edvance Corporation

Staff

Christiana Thornton

Scott Rogers

John Flanders

Counselors and Advising Staff

President and CEO

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Strategy & Lending Officer

Karen Collins

Chris Cox

Celina Heyliger

Shawn Kithcart

Eric Lofstedt

Lily O'Connor

Cameron Owen

Moira Valenti

College

College

College

College

College

College

College

College

Counselor

Counselor

Counselor

Counselor

Counselor

Counselor

Counselor

Counselor
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Granite Edvance Corporation

Board of Directors

Susan Muard

Paul Provost

Rick Elwell

James ("Jamie") Burnet

Peter Burger, Esq.

Bill Dwyer

Carol Houle

Gordon ("DIno") Koff

Chuck Lloyd

Debby Miller

Hans Olson

Sandy Tracy

Chair

Vice Chair

Treasurer

Secretary

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member

Board Member
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Christiana Thornton President and CEO

Christiana, a New Hampshire native, understands firsthand the difficulty some students face on their

postsecondary pathways. The first In her family to attend college, she credits her high school guidance
counselor with helping her to identify her path and then navigate the college application process. While

in college, and challenged in her ability to cover the full cost of her tuition, she relied on a private

student loan to fill her funding gap. Post college, she benefited from loan repayment assistance through

an employer. Christiana's vision for New Hampshire includes accessible postsecondary planning and

funding support and resources for all residents — ultimately contributing to more vibrant communities

and a more robust state economy.

In addition to leading Granite Edvance, Christiana serves as a trustee for the University System of New

Hampshire and as a member of New Hampshire's College Tuition Savings Plan Advisory Commission. She

is past chair of the National Council of Higher Education Resources board of directors and past president

of the New Hampshire Bankers Association. She formerly served on the New England Community

Development Advisory Council (CDAC) for the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston.

She also serves on the board of directors of the New Hampshire Business & Industry Association and as

a trustee of NH Mutual Bancorp, a mutual bank holding company. In this capacity, she also serves as a

Director for Merrimack County Savings Bank and NH Trust Company.

Prior to joining NH Bankers, she served for six years as a staff member for former United States Senator

John E. Sununu, both in New Hampshire and in Washington, D.C. She worked as a Legislative Aide

focusing on education, labor, banking and housing policy issues.

Christiana graduated from Rollins College with a bachelor's degree in political science. She lives in

Pembroke with her husband and two children, who are in the process of figuring out their own

postsecondary journeys.

Scott Rogers Chief Financial Officer

In his role as chief financial officer, Scott Rogers is committed to supporting young people in their

postsecondary journeys. Scott traces his vision back to his own youth, when a counselor at his high

school encouraged him to aim high. The youngest of several siblings, he knew his parents couldn't help

much in paying for college, but he took a chance and applied to Columbia University. To his surprise, he

received scholarships that, combined, covered all his costs.

Before joining Granite Edvance, Scott served as CFO for a New Hampshire-based direct response

marketing firm focused on assisting nonprofit organizations. Prior to that, he was a founding member

and CFO of an electrical equipment manufacturer. He has also served in a number of other leadership



roles, including: controller of a semiconductor capital equipment manufacturer; AVP financial planning
and analysis for the life & health insurance operations of a Fortune 500 insurance company; controller
of a New York City-based HMO; and bank real estate lending officer.

Along with a bachelors' degree from Columbia University, Scott holds an MBA from the University of
New Hampshire. He has served as chair of the Granite State Workers Compensation Manufacturers

Trust and treasurer of the HELM Excess Insurance Trust. He has also served on the boards of Special

Olympics of New Hampshire, the Manchester Community Music School, and Samaritans of South Central
New Hampshire.

Scott and his wife are currently putting their youngest child through college and know the financial
challenges and difficult decisions families often face. He enjoys uncovering new ways to help families
pay for postsecondary education so that all students can aim high.

Scott lives in Henniker with his wife and enjoys outdoor activities, especially boating.

John Flanders Chief Strategy & Lending Officer

With deep roots in the Granite State, John Flanders is passionate about helping the people and

communities of New Hampshire thrive. While at Dartmouth College, he watched his classmates angle

for jobs on Wall Street but set his sights on working for a NH community bank. After graduation, he
went door to door at local banks until he persuaded someone to give him a job as a credit analyst.

Over the years, John has worked at a variety of NH institutions and non-profits, often serving in
mentorship capacities. His prior roles include chief operating officer of the New Hampshire Community

Loan Fund, chief risk officer of The Nashua Bank, and deputy director and senior loan officer for

Manchester Neighborhood Housing Services. He has also served in a number of commercial lending

positions with NH financial institutions, including the management of a commercial lending department.

As chief strategy and lending officer for Granite Edvance, John is building connections around the state
to ensure students from all walks of life can access the resources and support they need to discover and

reach their full potential.

John has completed the executive program in commercial lending at the University of Virginia. He is a
current board member for the NH Center for Nonprofits and has also served on the Community

Development Advisory Board at the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston and on the board of directors at

Cross Roads House, a homeless shelter in Portsmouth. He enjoys hiking, telemark skiing, and other

outdoor activities.


